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Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) continued
to experience various challenges in the year of 2012. A
couple of restructuring measures have been implemented
by the Company during the year to improve its results and
to pave way for future development of the Group.

The popularity of Internet poses various degree of impact
on almost every business, particularly the electronic
software and technology sectors. It brings many new
opportunities as well as a lot of new challenges to
these sectors. In order for the Group to keep continuity
of operation under the surroundings which is full of
information, we must keep abreast with the changing
environment by pursuing visionary changes under the
existing business model. Leveraging the convenience
brought by the Internet to enhance the competitiveness
of the Group.

In light of the above, the Group is seeking breakthrough in
the following three aspects:

(i) Product Portfolio

With the rapid development of mobile Internet, its
impact on the consumer market will become more
significant. More and more products and services
will come with the tide of it. As such, the Group
will introduce new products and services in respect
of its e-learning, e-medical, e-logistic and machine-
to-machine products with this element being
incorporated therein to meet the market demand.
The Group believes that mobile Internet products will
lead the trend in the near future.

(if) Business Model

Market competition is keen in the era of information.
The Group will be required to adjust its existing business
model in order to enhance its competitiveness. In
view of the fact that rely solely on vertical integration
manufacturing is no longer the best business model,
therefore, the Group will develop other businesses
models such as Internet platform system development
and network operation, etc. in addition to vertical
integration manufacturing. Making use of the extensive
network coverage and huge penetration rate of Internet
to increase the sales of the Group's products and the
value of its services.
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(iii) Business Partnership

Under the new economic model, the key to success
lies in the possession of innovation, efficiency
and good adaptability to get quick response to its
customers’ expectations. It will be hard for the
Group to achieve all these on its own. It needs to
cooperate with other business partners to attain
complementary and synergy benefits. The Group is
now moving towards this direction.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
does not recommend any payment of final dividend to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

APPRECIATION

The Group is celebrating its 25th anniversary this year.
On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for
their valuable contributions throughout the years as well
as to extend my appreciation to all our Shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continual
support. In the coming future, the Group will uphold the
“people-oriented” approach and do its best in enhancing
the return for its stakeholders.

By order of the Board
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Shortly after the Group had implemented the measures
of product lines adjustment, management restructuring
of Manufacturing Business Unit and merger of Strategic
Business Units (“SBUs") in the first half of the year
under review, the businesses of the Group have been
affected to a certain degree. Although there was a slight
improvement on the results in the second half of the
year, the overall results was still far from satisfactory.
Notwithstanding this, the narrow down in loss indicated
that such improvement measures gradually took effect
in the second half of the year. The management of
the Company will continue to monitor and review their
effectiveness and will make some minor adjustments
whenever necessary with a view to turnaround the overall
results.

In order to further improve the efficiency of the Manufacturing
Business Unit, the Group has re-arranged the internal
layouts of the facilities of the plant during the year to make
room for setting up of a new “Electronic Manufacturing
Services” ("EMS") Division and for introduction of the cellular
manufacturing production lines as well as to rent out the rest of
the spare space to create new sources of revenue.

The joint venture of the Group specialized in plastic
injection moulding business was formally established
and has begun its operation. Orders from the outside
customers were received from time to time and certain
new equipments were acquired to meet the production
demand and to cater for larger scale of production, which
in turn will enhance the economic benefits.

Strategic Products

The sales of strategic products during the year under
review was approximately HK$296,426,000, representing
a decrease of approximately 16.6% as compared with
the same period last year. As the Strategic Products
Strategic Business Unit (“SP SBU") has been relying
heavily on the customers from the Japan market after
its internal restructuring and streamlining of operation
structure since April 2012 whilst developing of other
overseas markets is still in progress, as a result, the sales
of strategic products has been dragged down during the
year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Personal Communication Products

The sales of personal communication products during the
year under review was approximately HK$86,914,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 29.6% as
compared with the same period last year. The core
product of the personal communication products is the
point-of-sale ("POS") product which is mainly sold to the
European market. The persistent sluggishness in economy
of Europe posed negative impact on the sales of the POS
products. The Group has devoted to the development of
other geographical markets in order to alleviate reliance
on the European market, among which the sales of the
Asian market has rebounded slightly after the efforts
made by the Personal Communication Products Strategic
Business Unit. However, the Group has failed in tendering
for the projects of the POS original design manufacturing
handheld products, causing the overall revenue of personal
communication products fell below expectation.

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES
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OUTLOOK

The newly established EMS Division has come into
operation. This division has already confirmed its first
two orders from two customers with satisfactory order
guantities. One of the orders is being put into production.
The Group is proactively seeking for new EMS customers
to further improve the results of the Manufacturing
Business Unit. Meanwhile, the Group has adjusted its
production lines by introducing the cellular manufacturing
production lines in place of certain traditional mass-
production lines. By doing so, time can be saved in
swapping the production lines and the Manufacturing
Business Unit can be more flexible in handling the small
to medium size orders, so as to maximize productivity as
a whole.

Strategic Products

The SP SBU has dedicated to developing the children’s
educational toy products in the first half of last year. It is
expected that such products can bring in steady revenue
to the Group at the high season starting from July.

The weakness in Japanese yen caused Japanese
customers to be more prudent and cautious in placing
outsourcing orders. Despite this, the Group has managed
to secure some new projects. However, as the products
under such new projects will be launched at the end of
this year, the revenue concerned will be incorporated into
the Group's results later this year.

A Learning Solution Department was established by the
Group last year and resources have been re-allocated in
transforming the product lines from traditional electronic
dictionary to learning tablets gradually, aiming at the
primary students’ market. Subsequent to the continuous
effort made by this department last year, the first batch
of products have already been launched in the second
guarter of 2013 in the South East Asia and Middle East
markets with positive feedback. Learning tablets will be
one of the key products of the Group in the near future.
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OUTLOOK (continued)
Personal Communication Products

As for the personal communication products, the Group
will continue to deploy resources in enhancing the
functions of its self-invented POS terminal products,
so that they can be able to support WinCE and
Android softwares. The Group will further improve the
wireless performance and reliability of such products.
Furthermore, a new product developed by the Group last
year will formally be introduced into the market this year.
It is believed that such new product can bring in revenue
to the Group.

Looking forward, the Group will, on the one hand,
consolidate its existing businesses with a view to
returning to profitability and maintaining its daily
operating expenses. On the other hand, due to the huge
development potential of e-business in China, the Group
has embarked on establishment of e-business teams in
both Guangzhou and Shenzhen. Particularly, the Group's
base in Guangzhou has already been granted of the
premises permit in June 2013. The Group is now in the
process of setting up its e-business teams by identifying
suitable corporate partners to the base. It is planned to
turn its Guangzhou base into a large e-publication and
e-business incubation centre in order to share the synergy
benefits.

ANALYSIS OF REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL
MARKET
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North America
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31
March 2013 was approximately HK$383,340,000, which
was approximately 20% lower than approximately
HK$478,708,000 of last year. During the year under
review, personal communication products business
and strategic products business recorded revenue of
approximately HK$86,914,000 and HK$296,426,000
respectively.

Operating loss of the Group during the year was
approximately HK$72,717,000 (2012: approximately
HK$72,894,000). After deducting finance costs of
approximately HK$580,000 (2012: approximately
HK$511,000) and other expenses of approximately
HK$3,391,000 (2012: approximately HK$3,467,000),
loss before tax was approximately HK$76,688,000
(2012: approximately HK$76,872,000). After taking into
account of taxation, loss for the year was approximately
HK$76,685,000 (2012: approximately HK$76,918,000).

Regarding the statement of financial position, inventories
decreased by approximately HK$11,813,000 to approximately
HK$65,554,000 and trade receivables decreased by
approximately HK$2,641,000 to approximately HK$56,999,000.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting
period amounted to approximately HK$80,782,000
which was approximately 42% lower than approximately
HK$138,990,000 of last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

On 31 March 2013, the bank balances and cash of the
Group (including bank deposits) were approximately
HK$80,782,000 in total, which was approximately
HK$58,208,000 or approximately 42% lower than those
of twelve months ago. The Group's bank borrowing was
HK$20,000,000 (31 March 2012: HK$20,000,000). The
Group's bank borrowing was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars with floating interest rate and short term in nature.

As at 31 March 2013, the gearing ratio of the Group,
defined as total bank borrowings divided by Shareholders’
equities, was approximately 6%. The interest expenses
was approximately HK$580,000 during the year.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the contingent liabilities of
the Group were approximately HK$4,895,000 (2012:
approximately HK$12,650,000).

FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY POLICY

Most of the Group’'s business transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Japanese Yen, United States dollars or Renminbi. The
usual treasury policy of the Group is to manage significant
currency exposure and minimize currency risk whenever
it may have material impact to the Group. During the last
twelve months period, the Group did not engage in any
interest rate or currencies speculations.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has on its payroll
139 employees (2012: 201 employees) in Hong Kong,
1,377 employees (2012: 1,583 employees) in China
and 13 employees (2012: 13 employees) in Japan,
representing a decrease of approximately 31%, a
decrease of approximately 13% and remain unchanged
respectively as compared with last year. In addition to
salary remuneration, the Group also provides other fringe
benefits such as annual leave, medical insurance and
provident fund, etc. for its staff.

During last financial year, the Group’'s management
held monthly breakfast meeting with its senior staff
to review together the Group's performance as well
as to formulate effective business strategies. Within
SBUs, communication meetings were held periodically
to share the SBU’s performance and directions among
related staff. Meanwhile, the Chairman of the Group also
shared the Company’s development highlights with the
employees through email regularly. The management
actively communicates with employees through intranet
and emails to ensure free flow of information across
different staff levels and to promote information and
experience sharing. All staff are encouraged to express
their views and feelings and to propose suggestions on
different aspects. A good promotion system is in place to
identify the potential staff and help employees preparing
for their career prospects.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

In addition to internal training programmes, employees
are encouraged to take external programmes to acquire
additional knowledge and upgrade their skills. Employees
may be nominated for attending direct job-related training
programmes or seminars with full sponsorship. For other
external training courses, employees may still apply for
full or partial subsidies through the Group’s Education
Sponsorship & Allowance Scheme.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group’s concern for the environment begins with its
own operations. The Group's headquarter in Hong Kong
participated the centralized automatic refuse collection
system and lighting control system. The Group encourages
the adoption of recycled or environmentally responsible
materials as well as paper and toner cartridges recycling.
Besides, the Group requests any relevant parts or materials
delivered, provided and/or supplied by the suppliers
shall comply with and observe Directive of the European
Parliament and of the Council on the restriction of the use
of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic
equipment (RoHS), Directive of the European Parliament
and of the Council on waste electrical and electronic
equipment (WEEE), Directive of the European Parliament
and of the Council on registration, evaluation, authorization
and restriction of chemicals (REACH) and other standards.

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the
ISO9001 Quality Management System and ISO14001
Environmental Management System have been combined
since 2000. On-site surveillance assessment is conducted
regularly by independent assessors to ensure compliance
and continual improvement. Internal audit teams have been
organized to perform compliance audit on an on-going
basis.

As to care for the community, the Group participated
in “"Blood Donation and Bone Marrow Registration
Campaign” launched by Red Cross at Hong Kong Science
Park in March 2013 and we encourage our colleagues to
become donors and give a helping hand to the patients who
are in need of blood or bone marrow to sustain their lives.
Moreover, the Group was a venue sponsor for Lutheran
Family Life Education Unit (Shatin) for organizing some
talks on family life during the fiscal year.
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The Company recognizes the importance of good
corporate governance to the long-term development
of the Group and has devoted considerable efforts in
identifying, formulating, implementing and enhancing
corporate governance practices in accordance with the
needs of the Group. As mentioned below, the Company
has established the relevant committees/sub-committee
and adopted certain internal policies to improve internal
controls and enhance transparency of business operation
of the Group with a view to protect the interests of its
stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”, which has
come into effect on 1 April 2012) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the financial
year ended 31 March 2013, except for the following
deviation:

Code provision A.6.7 requires, inter alia, that independent
non-executive directors should also attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders.

Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris, one of the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, was absent from
the annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the Company
held on 18 September 2012 due to illness.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “"Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) on terms no less exactly
than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year ended 31 March 2013.
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THE BOARD

As at the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this
report, the Board comprises the following nine Directors:

Executive Directors

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Non-executive Director
Luk Chui Yung, Judith*
Independent Non-executive Directors

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, JP

Wong Kon Man, Jason

Fung Henry (appointed on 16 July 2013)

Ho Kwok Shing, Harris (resigned on 1 July 2013)

* Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith has resigned as Executive Director with
effect from 1 January 2013 and was appointed as Non-executive
Director on the same date.

Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, reviewing and
monitoring its financial performance, including preparing
and approving financial statements and overseeing
operational matters of the management, considering the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Daily
business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board meetings and practices

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices and agenda of regular board meetings
are served to all Directors at least fourteen days before
the meetings to ensure that all Directors are given the
opportunity to attend and to include matters in the
agenda. Discussion materials of regular board meetings
are sent to all Directors for their study at least three days
prior to the meetings. Draft minutes of board meetings
are circulated to all Directors for review and comments
within a reasonable time after the meetings prior to
confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail
of the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, four board
meetings and an AGM were held by the Company and the
individual attendance of each Director is set out below:

HEERXH
Number of meetings attended
E=g83 BRRBFARE
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
HITES - Executive Directors:
BER ATHL(EE) Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman) 4/4 11
BRR(EFLLE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) 4/4 11
BiERE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4 1N
AAME Kazuhiro Otani 3/4 1
E3Nw Lee Koon Hung 4/4 171
FHITEE - Non-executive Director:
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith 4/4 171
BIIHTESE Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dok REnES - RE8E - AT Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, Jp 4/4 1/1
KR _E—=F+ A —HET) Ho Kwok Shing, Harris (resigned on 1 July 2013) 3/4 0/1
THX Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4 171
BUE(RN-_E—=F+ A+/"BEZT) Fung Henry (appointed on 16 July 2013) N/A N/A
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board meetings and practices (continued)

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, sufficient number of Independent Non-executive
Directors have been appointed with one of them has
appropriate accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board has received annual confirmation
of independence from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Relationship between Board Members

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and
Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka
Wai, Vivian is the spouse of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
and the sister-in-law of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas. The
relationship between Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Ms. Luk
Chui Yung, Judith is husband and wife. Save for such
relationships, there is no other financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships among members
of the Board.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

With effect from 1 April 2012, the management of
the Company has provided the Directors with monthly
updates on the Company's performance, position and
prospects to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions in discharging their duties.

In addition, the Company updates the Directors of the
latest changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time. Apart from
encouraging the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development (“CPD") courses to refresh
and enhance their knowledge and skills, the Company
also arranged an industry-related in-house seminar for
the Directors and provided them with reading materials
relating to the corporate governance and compliance
issues. All Directors have provided the Company with
their records of training they received during the year
ended 31 March 2013.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
(continued)

BENBE_ZE—=F=A=t+—H1t A summary of the trainings participated by the Directors
FELE 7 EINEMmmT during the year ended 31 March 2013 was as follows:
BREREERBEEIFR
Mode of CPD training
HER, HEHMIEE
NRZMHE  HEME BERRIEH
Attend in-
house/outside ~ Reading Attend other
seminars materials  CPD events
HTEE - Executive Directors:
BER ATt (L) Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman) v / -
ERR(BEFHILE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) v v -
s Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian v v -
Aafg Kazuhiro Otani / / _
R Lee Koon Hung / / _
FHITEE : Non-executive Director:
ERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith v/ v -
BUHEHTESE - Independent Non-executive Directors:
Tk ggies 2895 ATHT Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, JP v/ v/ v/
Bk (R=E—=F+ A —HEHE) Ho Kwok Shing, Harris (resigned on 1 July 2013) v v -
T#Y Wong Kon Man, Jason v v v
BAE(R-ZE—=5+ A+ BEZE)  Fung Henry (appointed on 16 July 2013) N/A N/A N/A
2013 JBFHRE EE(ER)FRAA 17
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THE BOARD (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties of the Company in
accordance with the “Terms of Reference of Corporate
Governance Function” adopted by it in 2012:

(a)

(e)

to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
appropriate recommendations;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has performed
the following corporate governance duties:

Reviewed and approved the contents of the
Corporate Governance Report included in the 2012
annual report of the Company;

Reviewed and approved the Revised Terms of
Reference of the Audit Committee to reflect the
latest changes in the Listing Rules; and

Reviewed the Whistle-blowing Policy of the Group
to ensure the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting and internal control, etc. were adequate.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company
are Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas respectively. The roles of the Chairman and
the Managing Director are clearly segregated and are
not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman
is principally responsible for the Group's corporate
planning and financial management whereas the
Managing Director is principally responsible for the overall
marketing and sales strategies of the Group's products.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the Non-executive Director
and the Independent Non-executive Directors are fixed
for a specific term, and shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has set up five committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Executive
Management Committee and the Share Option
Committee respectively. Each committee is delegated
with specific authorities by the Board in assisting the
Board to discharge its duties and to administer particular
aspects of the Group’'s activities. The roles and functions
of each committee are summarized below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The
Company has adopted terms of reference of the Audit
Committee in compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the
Code. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki,
Samuel sBs, MH, JP (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Wong Kon Man, Jason and Mr. Fung Henry (appointed on
16 July 2013). Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris ceased to be a
member of the Audit Committee on 1 July 2013 due to his
resignation as Independent Non-executive Director on the
aforesaid date.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
is to provide an independent and professional advice
on financial reporting, to evaluate the effectiveness of
internal control (including the adequacy of resources,
gualifications and experience of staff of the Company’'s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget) and the sufficiency of
external and internal audits of the Group.

After each Audit Committee meeting, the chairman of
the Audit Committee will report to the Board of the
significant issues discussed by the Committee for the
Board's information and/or consideration. The Process
Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee was
formed in 2002 to assist the Audit Committee in carrying
out its duties and to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to the
Audit Committee periodically.

The Audit Committee has held four meetings (two of
which have invited the auditors of the Company to
participate) in the financial year ended 31 March 2013.
The major tasks accomplished by it during year are
summarized below:

° Reviewed the final results for the year ended 31
March 2012 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2012, and confirmed
that the accounting principles and practices adopted
as well as the disclosures made in such financial
statements were appropriate, accurate and fair;

° Reviewed the quarterly financial position of the
Company for the months ended 30 June 2012 and 31
December 2012 respectively;

° Reviewed the internal audit reports submitted by
the Internal Audit Sub-committee of the Company,
evaluated and advised on the internal control
procedures and risk management matters;

° Discussed with the auditors on the scope of audit
for the financial year ended 31 March 2013 and
approved the auditors’ remuneration;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

Considered the amendment of the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee to reflect the
latest changes in the Listing Rules; and

° Reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The attendance rate of individual members in attending
the Audit Committee meetings is as follows:

HESRRE

Number of

meetings

attended

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel SBS, MH, JP 4/4
(Chairman of Audit Committee)

Wong Kon Man, Jason 3/4

Ho Kwok Shing, Harris (resigned on 1 July 2013) 4/4

Fung Henry (appointed on 16 July 2013) N/A

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996.
The Company has adopted terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee in compliance with code
provision B.1.2 of the Code. The Remuneration Committee
comprises an Executive Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp and two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Fung Henry (appointed
on 16 July 2013). Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris ceased to
be a member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 July
2013 due to his resignation as Independent Non-executive
Director on the aforesaid date.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure in relation to remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. It schedules
to meet at least once a year to review and determine
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and senior management and to make recommendation
to the Board of the remuneration of Non-executive
Director. In determining and approving the remuneration
of Directors and senior management of the Company,
the Remuneration Committee will take into consideration
of various factors such as market competitiveness,
individual performance and profitability of the Company
and its business units.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting
in the financial year ended 31 March 2013 to approve
the salary adjustment of Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The attendance rate of
each member is set out below:

HESF R

Number of

meetings

attended

Wong Kon Man, Jason 11
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 11

Ho Kwok Shing, Harris (resigned on 1 July 2013) N

Fung Henry (appointed on 16 July 2013) N/A

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012.
The Company has adopted terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee with reference to code provision
A.5.2 of the Code. The Nomination Committee comprises
an Executive Director, namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Fung Henry (chairman of the Nomination Committee)
(appointed on 16 July 2013) and Mr. Wong Kon Man,
Jason. Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris ceased to be the
chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 July 2013
due to his resignation as Independent Non-executive
Director on the aforesaid date.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or reappointment of Directors, and
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee has held two meetings in
the financial year ended 31 March 2013 to review and
consider the following matters:

o Reviewed the qualifications and experiences of
individual Directors as well as their roles and
responsibilities in the Group to ensure the existing
Board structure is fit for the business growth of the
Group;

° Assessed and confirmed the independence of each
Independent Non-executive Directors and made
recommendation to the Board on their reappointments;
and

o Considered the re-designation of Ms. Luk Chui Yung,
Judith from an Executive Director to a Non-executive
Director and made relevant recommendation to the
Board.

The attendance rate of individual members in attending
the Nomination Committee meetings is as follows:

HEESBERE

Number of

meetings

attended

EK (IS EEEL/E) Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 2/2
(R—Z—=%Ft A —HEIT) (Chairman of Nomination Committee)

(resigned on 1 July 2013)

BRER AFHt Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 2/2

F#x Wong Kon Man, Jason 2/2

Hrm(BEZ8 8% E) Fung Henry (Chairman of Nomination Committee) N/A

(RZT—=Ft A+ BEEE)

(appointed on 16 July 2013)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee was established
in 2005 with written terms of reference to operate as
a general management committee under the authority
of the Board. Currently, the Executive Management
Committee comprises five Executive Directors, namely
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (chairman of the Executive
Management Committee), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas,
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani and Mr.
Lee Koon Hung. Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith resigned as
a member of the Executive Management Committee on
1 January 2013 due to her resignation as an Executive
Director on the aforesaid date.

Share Option Committee

The Share Option Committee was established in
1996 with written terms of reference to deal with
issues relating to the grant of share options under the
Company’s share option scheme (if any). Any grant of
the Company’s share options to the Directors or their
associates requires approval from the Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Share Option Committee
comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mrs. Tam Mui
Ka Wai, Vivian (chairman of the Share Option Committee)
and Mr. Lee Koon Hung.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total remunerations
paid/payable by the Company to its external auditors in
respect of the audit services and non-audit services are as
follows:

FHETT
AR 48 R Types of services HK$'000
EZIRT Audit services 1,100
IEEZARTS Non-audit services 135
4t Total 1,235
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs and
results. In doing so, the generally accepted accounting
standards and suitable accounting policies in Hong Kong
are adopted and applied consistently. The Board is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the "Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages
42 to 43 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Miss. Wong Miu Ying, Vivian,
is a full time employee of the Company. Miss. Wong
confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year under
review in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convention of Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Clause 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition to the Company's
registered office. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act,
registered Shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal at a general meeting if they:

(@) represent not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of the Company at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b) are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolution(s) should be
duly signed by the registered Shareholder(s) concerned,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
must be deposited at the Company’s registered office.
The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements. The Shareholder(s) concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving
effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid
documents are received.

Enquiries from Shareholders

The Board welcomes views, enquires and concerns in
relation to the management and corporate governance of
the Group from Shareholders. Shareholders may at any
time send their enquires and/or concerns to the Board
in writing by email (gsl@gsl.com.hk), by fax ((852) 2892
0361) or by mail to the principal place of business of the
Company for follow up.

For shareholding enquiries, Shareholders may contact the
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of
the Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company was posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange on 20 March 2012 and there is no
change in such constitutional document during the year.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control
of the Group. The system of internal control is designed
to manage and mitigate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives with reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-
committee was formed in 2002 to provide support to
frontline functions in improving business operations
and performing internal audit. Internal audit reports will
be directly sent to the Audit Committee periodically.
A comprehensive policy and standard governing the
process improvement and internal audit scope and
workflow, authority and integrity of the audit staff,
was promulgated in September 2006. After each
Audit Committee meeting, the chairman of the Audit
Committee will address the significant findings of
the issues discussed for the Board's information and
consideration.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group which covers
the review of risk management functions, financial,
operational and compliance controls, the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget, etc.. The
Board considered the internal control system of the Group
effective and adequate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhance investor relationship
by increasing its transparency to the investment
community. A Shareholders Communication Policy was
adopted and posted on the Company’s website in March
2012 to ensure that Shareholders are provided with equal
and timely access to the comprehensive information of
the Group.

In addition, the following measures have been taken by
the Company to keep investors informed of the latest
developments and news of the Group and to facilitate a
two-way communication between the Company and its
Shareholders:

(a)  Mailing corporate communication documents such
as interim reports, annual reports and circulars to the
Shareholders periodically and uploading the same
on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange;

(b)  Publishing announcements through the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(c) Making available of the Company’s corporate and
products information on its website;

(d) Organizing general meetings to facilitate direct
exchange of views between the Shareholders and
the management of the Company; and

(e) Encouraging investors to communicate with the
Company through the Company’s website from time
to time.

At the Company's last AGM held on 18 September 2012,
all the resolutions relating to the adoption of financial
statements, re-election of directors, reappointment
of auditors and grant of general mandates to issue
and repurchase shares have been duly passed. The
forthcoming 2013 AGM of the Company is scheduled
to be held on 11 September 2013 at 10:00 a.m..
Shareholders may refer to the notice of the aforesaid
AGM contained in the circular of the Company dated 30
July 2013 for details.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson Jr, aged 49, is the Chairman
of the Company and one of the founders of the Group.
He is responsible for the Group’s corporate planning and
financial management. He has been one of the members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company since November 1996 and
March 2012 respectively. Dr. Tam graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
degree in Science and later was awarded the degree of
Doctor of Philosophy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He received “The Young Industrialist Award
of Hong Kong"” awarded by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries in September 1992 and was elected
the Hong Kong's “Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in
November 1997. He was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong (Information Technology Functional
Constituency) during the years from 2008 to 2012.
Currently, Dr. Tam is the chairman of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council ICT Services Advisory Committee
and a member of The Hong Kong/European Union
Business Co-operation Committee. He is the younger
brother of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, the Managing
Director of the Company and the husband of Mrs.
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 51, is the Managing
Director of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall marketing and
sales strategies of the Group's products. Mr. Tam has a
Diploma in Electronic Engineering from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over twenty-eight years
of experience in marketing electronic components and
consumer electronic products. He received “Advanced
Technology Development Award” of “Capital Magazine's
Outstanding Information Technology and Financial
Enterprise Awards” in August 2001. He is the elder
brother of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of the
Company and the brother-in-law of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian, an Executive Director of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 45, is an Executive
Director of the Company. She joined the Group in
February 1992 and is responsible for human resources
management and administrative matters of the Group.
She has been one of the members of the Share Option
Committee of the Company since November 1996.
Mrs. Tam has obtained a Bachelor's degree in Arts from
the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree
in Training and Human Resource Management from
the University of Leicester, United Kingdom, and has
over twenty-three years of experience in management
and administration. She is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson Jp, the Chairman of the Company and the sister-
in-law of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, the Managing
Director of the Company.

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 52, joined the Company as
Executive Director in April 1997. He is responsible for
OEM/ODM business in the Strategic Product Division
and corporate business planning of the Group. He is the
chief executive officer and president of Kabushiki Kaisha
Group Sense, a subsidiary of the Group in Japan. Mr.
Otani graduated from the Kansai University of Foreign
Studies in Osaka, Japan with a Bachelor of Arts in
Foreign Languages, and has been working for a Japanese
electronics company for fourteen years before he joined
the Group. He has spent the latter ten years in the
Hong Kong office of this Japanese company since 1987,
being responsible for sales and marketing of electronic
components such as IC, LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 50, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in April 1998. He is responsible for the personal
communication products business of the Group. He has
been one of the members of the Share Option Committee
of the Company since April 2003. Mr. Lee graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with Higher
Certificate in Electronic Engineering and obtained a
Bachelor's degree in Computer Science from Asia
International Open University and a Master of Science’s
degree in Engineering Business Management from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has twenty-
nine years of experience in product development. He
is the husband of Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith, a Non-
executive Director of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 46, joined the Group
in 1989 and was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in June 2007. She resigned as Executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2013 and was
appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company on
the same date. Ms. Luk was responsible for the electronic
dictionary business in the Electronic Dictionary Division
of the Group before April 2012 and for improving the
efficiency and effectiveness of the manufacturing, supply
chain, operation as well as the central procurement of the
Group during her tenure of office as Executive Director
of the Company. She graduated from the City University
of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma in Business
Management. She has twenty-four years of experience in
marketing and sales of consumer electronic products. She
is the wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, an Executive Director
of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, Jp, aged 55, joined
the Company as Independent Non-executive Director in
January 1995 and is the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. He is an executive district director of
AlA International Limited, member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference — National Committee,
founding president of Hong Kong Professionals and
Senior Executives Association, chairman of Betting
and Lotteries Commission. He also sits in a number
of Government committees and non-governmental
organizations as either chairman or committee member.
Mr. Yung was awarded an EMBA from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and has attained
certain professional qualifications such as certified
financial planner (CFP®M), registered financial consultant
(RFC), fellow chartered financial practitioner (FChFP),
certified manager of financial advisor (CIAM), chartered
insurance agency manager (CMFA), etc. In addition, he
is also an independent non-executive director of China
South City Holdings Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Yung was elected the Hong Kong's “Ten Outstanding
Young Persons” in 1994. He was a Municipal Commission
Standing member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Julin, Standing Committee member of
All-China Youth Federation, member of Commission
on Strategic Development of the HKSAR, member of
Central Policy Unit, chairman of Hong Kong United Youth
Association, chairman of The Outstanding Young Persons’
Association, director & chairman of International Committee
of General Agents & Managers Association International, co-
chairman of the Asia Pacific Financial Services Association,
president of The Life Underwriters Association of Hong
Kong and president of General Agents and Managers
Association of Hong Kong, etc.

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 49, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director in
September 2004. He is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Wong graduated from The University of Hawaii with a
Bachelor's degree in Business Administration majoring in
Accounting. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over eighteen years
of experience in accounting and auditing. At present,
Mr. Wong is the managing director of Fortune Capital
Group Limited. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Polyard Petroleum International Group Limited
and Neo-Neon Holdings Limited, companies listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market and the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange respectively.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. FUNG Henry, aged 55, joined the Company as
Independent Non-executive Director in July 2013. He also
acted as the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees of
the Company with effect from the aforesaid date. Mr. Fung
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of United Kingdom and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong respectively. He is also a registered Certified
Tax Advisor with the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Fung has over 27 years of
experience in accountancy and financial management. He
worked for two public listed companies prior to starting
work as a Practising Certified Public Accountant. During the
period between 2001 and 2003, he served as an advisor
to the board of directors of a leading Japanese Investment
Group in Hong Kong. Mr. Fung is experienced in providing
auditing and management consulting services to enterprises
in a wide range of industries including manufacturing,
mining, finance and investment, catering and entertainment,
technology and advertising.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 55, joined the Group in
December 2003. He is the executive director of Marketing
and Business Development of Group Sense PDA Limited
and Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited, subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Li holds a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration from University of East Asia. Prior to
joining the Group, he has more than twenty years of
experience in marketing and manufacturing of consumer
electronic products.

Mr. CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 52, joined the Group in
1993. He is the general manager of the Group's Strategic
Product Division. Mr. Chan graduated from University of
Birmingham, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science
in Computer Science. He has over twenty-seven years of
experience in the field of electronics and computer products.

Mr. LO Yat Man, Bang, aged 46, joined the Group
in September 2012 as plant general manager. He is
responsible for overseeing the overall operations of the
Group's production plant in Dongguan and the warehouse
in Kowloon Bay. Mr. Lo is currently pursuing a Master's
degree in Business Administration at University of
South Australia and will be graduated within this year.
He has over twenty-seven years of experience in plant
management and manufacturing of electronics products.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates are set out in notes 17,
18 and 19 to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 44.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
year under review and the Board does not recommend
any payment of final dividend to Shareholders for the
year ended 31 March 2013. The retention of the loss
of the Group as at 31 March 2013 was approximately
HK$196,995,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 March 2013:

(i) The Group's largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 15% and 41% respectively
of the Group’s total revenue.

(i) The Group's largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for 6% and 22% respectively of
the Group’s total purchases (not including purchases
of items which are of capital in nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of
the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders who
owned more than 5% of the Company's share capital
had any interest in the five largest customers or the five
largest suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year under review, the Group acquired
leasehold improvement of approximately HK$165,000,
furniture, fixtures and equipment of approximately
HK$317,000, plant and machinery of approximately
HK$760,000, toolings and moulds of approximately
HK$1,199,000 and construction in progress of
approximately HK$8,851,000.

Details of the above items and other movements in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year under review are set
out in note 34 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2013, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution which was calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act (as amended). In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$409,710,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Non-executive Director:
Luk Chui Yung, Judith
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, JP
Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
Wong Kon Man, Jason

Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith has resigned as Executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2013 and was
appointed as Non-executive Director on the same date.
Pursuant to Clause 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Luk will
retire from office and, being eligible, offer herself for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

In accordance with Clause 87 of the Bye-laws, Ms. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani and Mr. Yung
Wing Ki, Samuel sBs, MH, Jp will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM. Mr. Yung has notified the Company
that he will not seek for re-election as Director at the
said AGM due to his limited time commitment to the
affairs of the Group. Except for Mr. Yung, all other retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

Both of the Non-executive Director and the Independent
Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term
of no more than one year.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki,
Samuel sBs, MH, Jp, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr.
Wong Kon Man, Jason, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent.
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Names of Directors interests

BRERATHL 31,732,000
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JpP (#1722 )(Note 2)
EBER 34,732,000
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Bt:£2)(Note 2)
EiERE 2,300,000
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

AAFE 2,000,000
Kazuhiro Otani

i 1,676,000
Lee Koon Hung

N 550,000

Luk Chui Yung, Judith

Kt

1. #537,877,1180&A% 5 ¥ LAEarnmill Holdings
Limited 2 && &R %2 Al The Samson
1992 Trust & The Thomas 1992 Trust 1% 48
R ZEEZHEA - The Samson 1992
Trust 5—H2EREET  H2EREZHE
ANBREBEEsE L ra+ RERBESRE
#Z 4 o The Thomas 1992 Trust/& — 18 &
REGET  H2RREZZABRERERL
EREREBERBRLL BERE AT
+ EBEEEL LT RBERLEY AEarmmil
Holdings LimitedZ &% -

2. REBRMESHEESEIATa+REER
P4 HAH B #925,732, 0000 8810 ©

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2013, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

FEBEERROBAE (F7)

Number of ordinary shares held (Long Position)

Rk
Family
interests

HEBRITRE
AR

% of issued
share capital

HihiE s
(0)4,1:13
interests

- 537,877,118 569,609,118 47 .56
(K1z#1)(Note 1)

- 537,877,118 572,609,118 47.81
(B15£1)(Note 1)

- 537,877,118 540,177,118 45.10
(K15%1)(Note 1)

- - 2,000,000 0.17

- - 1,676,000 0.14

- - 550,000 0.05

Notes:

1.

The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill
Holdings Limited, a company ultimately beneficially owned by The
Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas 1992 Trust in equal shares.
The Samson 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian (the spouse of Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson JP). The Thomas 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the
discretionary beneficiaries of which include Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas and Mrs. Tam Ng Lai Yuen, Jocelyn (the spouse of Mr.
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas). Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, Mrs.
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, being
Directors, are also directors of Earnmill Holdings Limited.

Such shares included the 25,732,000 shares which are jointly owned
by Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2013, none of the
Directors or their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined
in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s old share option scheme was expired on
1 April 2012 and all the outstanding share options granted
under such scheme were either forfeited or lapsed. The
Company has not adopted any new share option scheme
as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in information of Directors for the year ended 31
March 2013 were as follows:

1. Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel s8s, MH, JP, an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as independent non-executive director
of China South City Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, on 1 March 2013;
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Names of Shareholders

Earnmill Holdings Limited
DJE Investment S.A.
Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

2. Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith has resigned as an
Executive Director and a director of a subsidiary of
the Group with effect from 1 January 2013 and was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on the same
date. Subsequent to her re-designation, Ms. Luk’'s
term of service has been changed from no specific
term to a term of one year; and

3. Changes in the Directors’ emoluments during the
year are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2013, the register of substantial
shareholders kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO shows that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the
following Shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued capital
of the Company:

FEEERROEE
(&)

Number of ordinary

HEBRTREZEDL

% of issued
share capital

shares held
(Long Position)

537,877,118 44 .91
(Bt7E1) (Note 1)
72,284,000 6.04
(M7#£2) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04
(BtiE2) (Note 2)
72,284,000 6.04

(M7#£2) (Note 2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” disclosed above.

2. DJE Investment S.A. held 72,284,000 shares as an investment
manager. DJE Investment S.A. was 81% controlled by Dr. Jens
Ehrhardt Kapital AG, which was in turn 68.5% controlled by Dr.
Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT. Therefore, DJE Investment S.A.,
Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG and Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT
were all interested or deemed to be interested in such shares.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2013, the Company
had not been notified by any persons who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practical date
prior to the printing of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel
sBs, MH, JP (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho
Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
held four meetings to review the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discuss internal
control and financial reporting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

40 Group Sense (International) Limited Annual Report 2013



M

ARABRBE=F AL EERZEEAD -
LB EBAAGERER - KA
AR EEERRBFRG LIRE A
RFBR - BELOKEFEERAA/ER
Bl Z 2286 -

EEFEE®

EREEE T cvas
FE

BB
—E—=FAZ1++H

AUDITORS

There has been no change in the auditors of the Company
during the past three years. Ernst & Young will retire and
the Company will propose a resolution at its forthcoming
AGM to reappoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2013
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To the shareholders of Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
44 to 142, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group's
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

27 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-T—=%=H=+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2013

—EBE—=F —E——4F
2013 2012
FH&xT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
WA REVENUE 5 383,340 478,708
SHERA Cost of sales (294,346) (350,395)
EH Gross profit 88,994 128,313
Hg AR Uz - 5#%8  Other income and gains, net 5 19,756 15,588
HE R SHET H Selling and distribution expenses (36,036) (42,681)
1T H Administrative expenses (86,826) (96,263)
e MRS Research and development expenses (58,345) (78,274)
Hibsz i - #5E Other expenses, net (3,391) (3,467)
=N Finance costs 7 (580) (511)
FEAE 4 7 J2 B398 Share of profits and losses of:
HEE g e Jointly-controlled entities (160) 423
— &R A An associate (100) =
BATEE LOSS BEFORE TAX 6 (76,688) (76,872)
FHIEY Income tax expense 10 3 (46)
REEEE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (76,685) (76,918)
Hith 2 E A OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
WEGINETES 2 Exchange differences on translation
& H =58 of foreign operations 869 6,328

AEELHEEHELE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR THE YEAR (75,816) (70,590)
i fay=2i=R Loss attributable to:
ViN/NETIE =¥ =N Equity holders of the Company 11 (75,724) (73,182)
JEFE = Non-controlling interests (961) (3,736)
(76,685) (76,918)
JE{h 2 B8 A %E: Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
VAN/NEI T 2= Y= DN Equity holders of the Company (75,011) (67,277)
IEFE Hil i e Non-controlling interests (805) (3,313)
(75,816) (70,590)
AT EERIRE LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
BEAELERER ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 13
FHA (L) Basic (HK cents) (6.3) (6.1)
BESE (BAL) Diluted (HK cents) (6.3) (6.1)

BRARB ZHBEHRITBEHRRMNFE12 -  Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=—ZZ—=F=HA=+—H8 As at 31 March 2013

—E—=F —=z=—=

= —

2013

TER
HK$'000

2012
TAT
HK$'000

FREEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - R MR Property, plant and equipment 14 125,894 121,525
TBAS £ 107 & R EE Prepaid land lease payments 15 17,162 17,017
R RE B 3K AR Deferred development costs 16 593 890

HRAEGHIBE ZRE Investments in jointly-controlled entities 18 8,203 12,344
5%%’2\ RlZRE Investments in associates 19 - =
A HERE Available-for-sale investments 20 36,425 38,218
KHE® Long term deposits 21 3,275 5,811
FEmEEEETE Total non-current assets 191,552 195,805
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 22 65,554 77,367
FEUE SR Trade receivables 23 56,999 59,640
FENFIE - ke Rk Prepayments, deposits and other

H th & W BR R receivables 24 33,550 42,473
JE U S R 4% 5 2 B Amounts due from jointly-controlled

BRI entities 18 195 -
JiE U Bt 2 N =) BR 7K Amounts due from associates 19 3,328 1,423
BEAFEZRABRRZ Investments at fair value through

K& profit or loss 25 - 8,261
BENBELEEIAR Cash and cash equivalents 26 80,782 138,990
mB)E EARE Total current assets 240,408 328,154
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEfRHE SR Trade payables 27 43,389 39,666
HibE R R EETAE  Other payables and accruals 28 30,646 50,539
M ESRITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 29 20,000 20,000
B fts Provision 30 2,059 2,046
FERBERK Tax payable 129 155
mEAEERE Total current liabilities 96,223 112,406
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 144,185 215,748
BEFE Net assets 335,737 411,553
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

R=ZT—=%F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2013

—EBE—=F —E——4F
2013 2012
FH&xT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B fE EQUITY
ENUNET):E Equity attributable to equity holders
A AELRE of the Company
=2 ITAR AR Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
{1 Reserves 34(a) 212,626 287,637
332,392 407,403
FEE GRS Non-controlling interests 3,345 4,150
A A RE Total equity 335,737 411,553
EEEELAvst BERRE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
= =
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZT—=%=H=+—H L% For the year ended 31 March 2013

KARREREARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FRE E4RE ik
B B R

EXsE
(1

24
ZiER 4 Bt

E&f B

Bx  EER R BUEL]

Issued
capital
Thn
HK$ 000

Share
premium
account*
T
HK$'000

Share

option
reserve*

T
HK$'000

Capital
redemption
reserve*
T

HK$ 000

Special
reserve*
ThTL
HKS'000

reserve*

TEL
HKS 000

Exchange Non-
Other fluctuation  Accumulated

losses*
T
HK$'000

reserve*
T
HK$000

Total
Tt
HK$'000

controlling
interests
Tin

HK$ 000

Total
equity
Tin

HK$ 000

(H3kad(a)
(note 34(a))

RIE—% At 1 Apri 2011
mA-A 119,766 409,710 285 419 (60,819 - 48,980 (50,945] 469,967 M 473708
AREER  Loslortreyer 11/ B 312/ 3 T
KEEED Other comprehensive
2ENE: income for the year:
FERNER,  Exchange diferences
EiER on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - - 5905 - 5,905 43 6,328
REE2ENE/  Total comprehensive
(BR)EE incomefloss) for the
per - - - - - - 5WE M) @0 B3y (e
~WBAFZEAE  Change in ownership
i g inerestin & subsidary - - - : - am : S ym
S/ BRI Transfer of share option
B EhR T8SeIVe Upon
& the lapsefiorfeiture
of share options - - (2,856) - = - - 2,856 - - -
RZE-2FZF  AL31 March 2012and
=t-H at 1 Apil 2012
i S
BA-A 119,766 409,710 - 419 (60,819) 4713 D488 (121.271) 407,403 4150 411,593
KERER Loss for the year - - = - - - _ M5724  (1574) 1) (76,685
KERAM Other comprehensive
2ENE: income for the year
FERNER,  Exchange diferences
EXER on translation of
foreign operations - - - = - : m ; ik 15 89
REERENE/  Total comprehensive
(BR)aE incomef(oss)
forthe yeer . - - - - - T3 (B4 (B0 B8 (586
R-B-=% At 31 March 2013
=R=t-H 119766 409,710 - 419 (60819) 4113 05598 (196,99 33239 3345 335,737

* HERERCERAGEVBRARZEERKE These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
212,626,000/ 70 (=& — =4 : 287,637,000/ HK$212,626,000 (2012: HK$287,637,000) in the consolidated statement of
JC) ° financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—ZT—=9=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

——f
2012

TR
HK$'000

REXBZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
5 Al 5 18 Loss before tax (76,688) (76,872)
TR - Adjustments for:
RUE AN Finance costs 7 580 511
JE(LHEEHIEE % —  Share of profits and losses of
A /NG]| jointly-controlled entities and an
i Al 2 E5 18 associate 260 (423)
RITA B YA Bank interest income 5 (1,020) (1,335)
BAFEZAEBREKZ Interest income from investments at
1RE S WA fair value through profit or loss 5 (226) (427)
AIHEEREY Dividend income from available-for-
% B A sale investments 5 (1,137) (1,134)
HEME - BE & Gain on disposal of items of property,
RAEIEE 2 WS plant and equipment 5 (307) (1,041)
BWATERLAEZFR Y Fair value losses on investments at
&2 N EEE fair value through profit or loss,
HER net 5 30 189
= Depreciation 6 10,182 12,974
i‘ﬁﬁii’@f =¢/¢- W Recognition of prepaid land lease
fER payments 6 493 476
Lﬁaﬂ?*ﬁ%$ Amortisation of deferred development
B costs 6 519 1,104
FEEME Provision of inventories 6 6,542 7,351
FEUL — HEIFEH|IEFEEEE  Impairment of an amount due from
FORE a jointly-controlled entity 6 2,506 1,600
FE U — Bt N A) BR 3K Impairment of an amount due from
D an associate 6 1,315 =
FEH&*H?%%’D\ETE;E%&\ Reversal of impairment of an amount
NERIEN due from an associate 6 (430) -
FEH&Z%%EEM/}:JZTE Impairment of trade receivables 6 26 8,428
H i U BR FURE Impairment of other receivables 6 12,057 3,215
Bl — BB BHIER Impairment of an amount due from
NERE] a joint venture partner 6 - 1,867
HERHEERE Y Gain on disposal of an available-for-
W s sale investment 5 (5,693) =
HEWB ARz s Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 (287) =
(51,278) (43,517)
FERD Decrease in inventories 4,752 31,345
W E 5 ERF0R Decrease in trade receivables 1,335 22,065
FERRIE - e REAM (Increase)/decrease in prepayments,
FEUSBEZR (3E0), R4  deposits and other receivables 36 (2,656) 1,229
JFE Wi BEE 5 N B BR 7K (Increase)/decrease in amounts due
() from associates (2,790) 8
FENT B SRR IIE N Increase in trade payables 3,550 1,112
HibpEftBRF N fEET B {& Decrease in other payables
NN and accruals 36 (20,115) (36,010)
EmirBRE Increase in provision for product
3N warranty 125 577
THEERmEERD Decrease in derivative financial assets - 227
REEBHEAZIME  Cash used in operations (67,077) (22,964)
ERNBEBRIE Hong Kong taxes paid - (9.487)
28N IE Overseas taxes paid (23) (48)
BEETE 2 Net cash flows used in operating
IR & R activities (67,100) (32,499)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE—Z—=9=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2013

2012
=g 7 T
Notes HK$'000
REER 2 Net cash flows used in operating
BE M #8 activities (67,100) (32,499)
REXEBZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
A EUA Interest received 1,020 1,335
BATFELABZREKZ  Interest received from investments at
& 7 F S M A fair value through profit or loss 226 427
AHEEREZ Dividend income from available-for-sale
2SI A investments 1,137 1,134
BAME - BEM Purchases of items of property,
L EIE H plant and equipment 36 (11,068) (29,979)
HEYE - KER Proceeds from disposal of items of
LEIEE 2B RIAE property,plant and equipment 1,150 1,342
HE—HE A RIS D2 Proceeds from disposal of partial
T8 =IE interest in a subsidiary - 8,435
HE—AHEEREZ Proceeds from disposal of an
Frf58 7008 available-for-sale investment 5,693 -
HEMBAR Disposals of subsidiaries 35 (23) =
32 NI AE 57 25 B AN Additions to deferred development costs 16 (240) (727)
& e Investment in available-for-sale
BE investments - (8)
Eoa ad i /N Investment in an associate (100) =
FEW — KR HIEEEARFK  Decrease in an amount due from a
VAN jointly-controlled entity 1,576 3,149
— At HERE Refund from an available-for-sale
IR investment 1,875 =
RHEAZ SN Increase in long term deposits - (812)
HE R HIZ A FEZ AR Proceeds from maturity of investment
T IGE TSR at fair value through profit or loss 8,219 =
WEBEB2BERA  Netcash flows from/(used in) investing
ORi) 558 activities 9,465 (15,704)
MEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Pﬂﬂﬁﬁk’@ Finance costs (580) (511)
Eil Efﬁfjgm New bank loans - 25,000
BEBITER Repayment of bank loans - (5,000)
MEXEB RS Net cash flows (used in)/from
Crd) /mAEsE financing activities (580) 19,489
RePHESEEERZ NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
AR CASH EQUIVALENTS (58,215) (28,714)
FY7HeKIFEE%ME  Cash and cash equivalents at
Pl beginning of year 138,990 163,900
SN e 2= B TR T Effect of foreign exchange rate
Pkt changes, net 7 3,804
FR2EERRELZE  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
EHE AT END OF YEAR 80,782 138,990
BeRBESEMEEBAL ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
# CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
He MIRTTERS Cash and bank balances 26 80,782 101,147
BARGLR=MARN  Non-pledged time deposits with original
2|5 7 JEH maturity of less than three months
E HATE K when acquired 26 - 37,843
REEE TSR R K& Cash and cash equivalents as stated
GARIEERERSEY  inthe consolidated statement of
RekBEeEEIEE financial position and consolidated
statement of cash flows 80,782 138,990
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Statement of Financial Position

R=ZT—=%F=H=+—H As at 31 March 2013

—E—=F —E—_F
2013 2012
TFHET TAET
HK$000 HK$'000
REBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
B AR ZEE Investments in subsidiaries 17 531,266 606,253
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
JE U BT B 2 B BR X Due from subsidiaries 17 3,000 3,000
AR - ke REM Prepayments, deposits and
JrE U BR R other receivables 24 200 213
WE NIRTTEE Cash and bank balances 26 103 203
MENE EARRE Total current assets 3,303 3,416
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bzt B E Accruals 28 410 535
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,893 2,881
EEAERRE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
=R LIABILITIES 534,159 609,134
FkRBAE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
AR ENGIE S Due to subsidiaries 17 198,897 198,667
BEFE Net assets 335,262 410,467
% A EQUITY
BT Issued capital 32 119,766 119,766
E=] Reserves 34(b) 215,496 290,701
IxrE4azR Total equity 335,262 410,467
EEEE L ret BEERLLE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
- E2
Director Director

50 Group Sense (International) Limited Annual Report 2013



RS ERAR A

Notes to Financial Statements

—Z—=%=F=+—H 31 March 2013

2.1

A&

BE(ER)BRAR(ARE])
e—EARAREIMRL2ERA
Al e ARAlZ EREXMHMNE
BMALHBEAMEBENRAER
hSREEESNE

5

RARER  NEBZEBEYP KK
i AERHEESEELETE
M TEAESTHHER  BEAR
HER  RBEERERTLEEER
(fODM]) °

mAEE

WEMBRRDIRBEEBS A
S([EEGMAG])BihzE
BB HREER([EEFBRS
ER D (AT BREEMEREE
Al - BEEER([BBEAE
Al 28 BERRGTRA R
BB RAMRPIMEERE MRS o
BRETHAFELABERZKRE
ARFEEIN - WEMBERET
BWESERAERE - WEMBTRE
BT INE  BRA BRI B
BB ABREREATIT

mEEE

RERAMBRRBIEA R R M EH
BAm(BHEIAEE)REBE—
E—=—F=A=+—HIFEZHM
Bk - B AR ZMBHRR IR
AEARRERREHE N —HE
ABE - MBARZEEBKRER
(BIAREBIRESEHI#E 2 HE)E T
NS MBEEGREEEXFE
HEKRIEZBHLE - FTAREAR
Alffl 2 48R - RS - KEAR AR
RPELECRERBERERIA KR
I B2 BN AR A B

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Place, No. 5 Science
Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the design,
manufacture and sale of a range of electronic handheld
products, primarily electronic dictionary products,
personal communication products, and manufacture of
original design manufacturing products (“ODM").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investments at fair value through profit
or loss, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2013. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated
on consolidation in full.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—T—=%=HA=+—H 31 March 2013

21 mBEEE) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
GEEE(E) Basis of consolidation (continued)
MBARZZEWRTIEE R IEE Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
HilEs - BE LB S| BRTALR - attributed to the non-controlling interest even if it

results in a deficit balance.

— B AR A R EE A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,

(WARBRIZEHE)  AIEERRS without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

N transaction.

([N 2 R V== N P ik If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it

o AEKRIEFER)ZHMBATZ derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and

EEBERE)NREE - ()VEMIE liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of

e RS 2 BRTEE M (i) R E S N AC any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative

8o RETIE R ER 0 REERI)ATUL translation differences recorded in equity; and

REZ AFE - ()FREBEMKRE recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration

ZANFE R BEEREPER AL E received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained

HEZRBRIEE - AR EMEE and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or

WHRANERZ ANEE R E loss. The Group's share of components previously

FoEAERBRNIEZRBAN (R (AE recognised in other comprehensive income is

BE) - reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as

appropriate.

2.2 HHRBERBEZHRE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

REBNANFEBERR NG XNER The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs

WA TN RS ST B BB 7S s & #ER) - for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

BERTBRE BAEPHHREELE HKFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
ZERIZE 1557 SR B X ERA time Adoption of Hong Kong
EETAR BB B E Financial Reporting Standards

SERl— B B = AR — Severe Hyperinflation and
REIBR B RERN 2 Removal of Fixed Dates for
BIE BRI 2 {&5] First-time Adopters

ERFERE FEUKERELER HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7
HEBI| 75 FIRTHTAE - Financial Instruments:

(EXIWN WE— B EEZ Disclosures — Transfers of
R 285 Financial Assets

BERSEER BELFERFE12% HKAS 12 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
F125% BriE# — B Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
BETAR H : jHEE of Underlying Assets

Y ez &5]

L AN KRB 5T B 76 B 755 3 5 2 BI| 3F 4 The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had

HIEEERREKERTET no significant financial effect on these financial

2. statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—Z—=%=F=+—H 31 March 2013

2.3

CHEMAEERERNEBTHR

HER
R B ORI L 5 B 7 ok R R
VAT B 28 0 {8 2R A 20 3 ) BT e 4%
CHES P R Rl

EBUBRE BAMBRELENB
R ZE 157 5 BRI E B R
EHES FEHR &R — BT

B2 1&5]2

EBUBRE BAUBRE L
R 75 BIWEHTA -
EHES WE—HETHE

ERTHEEZ
PHE
EAUBHRE LHITA

R ZE %R
EBUBRE HFRUBHRX?
R 551058
EBUBRE AELTH?
R 1158
EBU KRS
R ZE 1258
EBU KRS
AERIZE10
¥ 1158

RA &R
T a5 15 752
BET S HEER|
F105% « B R
F125 — AE1E5)

N %1255 ZAEE]?

BETA

ERYERE BEYBREEL

ZERZE105% «©  F1058 « F129 K

127 RBAEE BEZFTEAE27

FTERIE275 =T ——F) K

(ZZ2——F) EBEERB255]°

1BE] A

BB NFEZFE?

s 28

% 135%

EEGTEL FHESERE1R

F155E B HHRRZZH—

1BE] A Hh 2 E Kz H H
ZE2RZERT

BAEFER  ESEFS

51955

(Z&2—F)

EBGRTER  BUHEHRE?

2755

(Z&2—F)

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
— Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial
Statements?
Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
— Transition Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)
— Investment Entities®

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive
Income’

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—T—=%=HA=+—H 31 March 2013

23 CHEHEEEREMNSEHBMEHR 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
SEXER(E) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

ERSER  RELELER HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and
FR(ZF AEBERAIZHKE? Joint Ventures?

——%)

e tdEl] BHAELIHAER|FEI25% HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32
53258 EHTAE : Z#H— Financial Instruments:

BT i EER S Presentation — Offsetting
BB B Z1BE]? Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities®

E5 (FBRBAFS iR A A EE R 7Y HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production
WERED SFFER K K2 Phase of a Surface Mine?

BE) %
F205%
FEKE—FE FETR_ZE——FX Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
NFE-F REB8IT 2 BAME 2009-2011 Cycle HKFRSs issued in June 207122
——F A WEERZ(EF]?
1 R —F+ A AR EHABNERE L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
B AR

2 R-E—=F—A—ARZEHANFE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
BRI A Ak

3 RZZT—NF—-—A—HRZERABNFE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
B AR

4 REZE—RAF—A— B ZHABRNEE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
B AR

TEEA E AN AN EBNZER SN Further information about those HKFRSs that are

B EERNE—FERNAT - expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

BRI FRBERERE TSI AE The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to

SkE—BRWEAE AR EAER & disclose information about rights to set-off and

PR L HE (BRI Atpas) o W& related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements).

Ba AP RM SRR A E T The disclosures would provide users with information

HE —ERNTERINEENE that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting

BER - BniBEEAest£E arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The new

R T A - 2XEANAED disclosures are required for all recognised financial

B2 TEERTBE - ZZH instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS

BN E AN A RN IT R R A 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures

H L PE sk BB U % FT AR PR B B #E 3R also apply to recognised financial instruments that are

2R TEH EREEeCBEBERDBD subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement

SR FE 25K o AEFETEST or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are

BN —_E—=F00 8 —HBEENZ set off in accordance with HKAS 32. The Group expects

FE(&ET ° to adopt the amendments from 1 April 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—Z—=%=F=+—H 31 March 2013

2.3

CHEMAEEARERNEBTHER 2.3
HAER ()
R_ZBTNF+— ARG EBH
BHREERFEIR T TE2MKER

SR ERFEIR AT A - #iR

LRt E2mat 8l 2% —EBRE
- WERHNSHEE c DRE
AE - BERAREZEEEESH
BEZCEBEAREREEZAN
RanBl SepEEID AR
BIER AR FEETRENE
MmIEKEBMEED R - §HEN
EhBE B ERFEIRHE
ZLEREEDBNTEIL °

E-ZF+—F  FBEGE

oh B 75 BB R BB S W
2B 5 O5% 2 #r 8 AR E ([ #3848
El) > W EE G ERIEI95%
MHBTEZHEEREERRNAA
BEMBREEREIHRA - Bt
BERBERAFEFABBRIHBTE
BZAEREBRRNFEREE(AYF
BEEZAE - RUZFAVEEER
BEMS  AGEERBRESHMEL
MEBERTEZSHE  BARE
2w W ([ Hm2 W) R 2
5 - BRIFNEMEmBETIEE
ZEEERBREIAFEES SR
BamPEERBASAZR - BRI
EBAFEEHSENBRET -
AT - FIEREL NRER AN FE
%%%WJ\Z%?%K%E%&M%%%E\

BAEMBREEREREEELE
BREBERB G ERE395E - REM
BRHT - BB ERIEIRNE
HEE  RILER R EEE 2R
BHEESIEEER - AEER
AERE—E-—AFMA—HER
MEBIM B MEERFENR - RHE
00 25 P A P BR B SR AR AR BB - K
SEKEREMEREBLCEZE -

A

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with
the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions
to HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the
“Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current
derecognition principles of financial instruments of
HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried forward
unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option (“FVQ"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting, derecognition and
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2015. The
Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other
phases, when the final standard including all phases is
issued.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities
are consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS
27 and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also addresses the issues raised in
HK(SIC)-Int 12.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number
of new disclosure requirements for these entities.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify
the transition guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide
further relief from full retrospective application of
these standards, limiting the requirement to provide
adjusted comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if the
consolidation conclusion as to which entities are
controlled by the Group is different between HKFRS
10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of
the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied for
the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures related to
unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments
will remove the requirement to present comparative
information for periods before HKFRS 12 is first
applied.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December
2012 include a definition of an investment entity and
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity. Investment entities are required to account
for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate
them. Consequential amendments were made to
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to
HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011),
HKAS 28 (2011), and the subsequent amendments to
these standards issued in July and December 2012
from 1 April 2013.

2013 AFHE EE(EB)ARLT 57



B R R YL ()

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—T—=%=HA=+—H 31 March 2013

2.3

CHEMERMRERNEBMHZR 2.3

HEA(E)

= R A

BEMBREENEI1I3R/ERT L
FENBHEESE A FEFEDE
E—HR - ARRBETERE
ERBEANEAORERE © %E
R e R 2 S K 5% B i P 8 PR A R
- BERETEEGBEBMBERE
HREREXAMERLFEZIE
SR BAAER A EMNES]
AEBEFER T —=FMNA—
BRBRAEBMEREERE13

=
3L °

BERGAENF1RETANER
Htt2HKm25WEB MDA -
ERREEEEAIEHR DB (HE
MEMR) ERE (AN BEEHE
FR)BIEER (fl s hk & FEE
WesF5E - BERINEBHEN =
B BRSREHETEEFRNAH
HESREENBRI M FR)
HERNSEHFHDENIEREE (HlNAE
AR ERANFEMBE WS R EE
ARBEHETHRETF)DHE -
AFEEFEFEZY| - WA HE
BARKKBBREE - AEETA
AR T -=FHA - HRBRH

AHER]

BAEGHENBE19R(ZT——F)
BREEEANEUEHEE S RE
g Bt < ZREF]  ERT M ER S
EEmAGTEISIAZERES - B
BUBBRERRE RS B - B
it 55 B B3 5 Bt B A ) FRE R B ) 2 2
N RHEEBEAN OB - MEE
BAF B 2 WE - AREEREASRN
—E-=—FNA-HERAEESG
PRI (=T ——%F) -

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
standard does not change the circumstances in which
the Group is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where
its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13
prospectively from 1 April 2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets)
would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified (for example, actuarial gains
and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation
of land and buildings). The amendments will affect
presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2013.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments
that range from fundamental changes to simple
clarifications and re-wording. The revised standard
introduces significant changes in the accounting for
defined benefit pension plans including removing
the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains
and losses. Other changes include modifications to
the timing of recognition for termination benefits,
the classification of short-term employee benefits
and disclosures of defined benefit plans. The Group
expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from 1 April 2013.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which
apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2013. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result
in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant
financial impact on the Group.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application and is not yet in a position to state
whether they would have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
polices the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company's investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the
joint venture's operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and has neither joint control
of, nor is in a position to exercise significant
influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group's investments in jointly-controlled entities
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
Group’'s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio
is different to the Group's equity interest, the share of
post-acquisition results of the jointly-controlled entities
is determined based on the agreed profit sharing ratio.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the jointly-controlled entities, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the
Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities.

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group's share of the
post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is
included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’'s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part
of the Group’'s investments in associates and is not
individually tested for impairment.

When an investment in an associate is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measures the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If
the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. \Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the disposed operation and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets, and goodwill),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or a parent of the entity).
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POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. \Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2%

Leasehold improvements 25%

Furniture, fixtures and 25%
equipment

Plant and machinery 15% to 25%

Tooling and moulds 50%

Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products of three years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent settlement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as other income and gains and negative net changes
in fair value presented as finance costs in profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group
may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to
loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
or held-to-maturity investments depends on the nature
of the assets. This evaluation does not affect any
financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option at designation, as
these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial
recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as
other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
profit or loss in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future
or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the Group has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-
for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or
loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.
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POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank
borrowing.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. These techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow
analysis; and option pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puUrposes.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only reoognlsed to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the
assets of which are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
eligible employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the ORSO Scheme. When an
employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her
interest in the Group's employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions.

The employees of the Group’'s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’'s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rate for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
and jointly-controlled entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities
which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below:

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. A change in the estimated future cash flows
and/or the discount rate applied will result in an
adjustment to the estimated impairment provision
previously made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment

Management estimates the recoverable amount of
items of property, plant and equipment when an
indication of impairment exists. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units. Estimating the value in use requires the
management to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for
sale and recognises movements of their fair values
in equity. When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to
determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in profit or loss. At 31 March 2013,
HK$10,000,000 (2012: HK$10,000,000) impairment
losses have been recognised for available-for-sale
assets. The carrying amount of available for sale assets
was HK$36,425,000 (2012: HK$38,218,000).

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated
loss arising from the inability of its customers to make
the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances,
customers’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of its customers
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance
and its future results would be affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two years on
certain products and undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant
judgement is required when determining the warranty
expenses. The Group estimates the warranty expenses
based on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24 months.
Where the warranty expenses incurred are different
from the original provision, the difference would impact
profit or loss in the period in which the additional
warranty expenses are incurred.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future
tax treatment of certain transactions are required in
determining income tax provisions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
these transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period of
benefits.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has three reportable operating segments as
follows:

(a) the personal communication products segment
designs, manufactures and sells a range of
communication products;

(b) the strategic products segment designs,
manufactures and sells ODM products and
electronic dictionary products; and

(c) the corporate and other segment comprises
corporate income, expenses, asset and liability
items related to the Group's investment
activities.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before
tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except
that interest income, finance costs, dividend income
as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale investments,
amounts due from associates and jointly-controlled
entities, cash and cash equivalents and other
unallocated head office assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowing, tax payable and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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4., ¥EBEER(E) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

BABRER
Personal
communication

REER EERHEM e
Strategic
products
TR
HK$'000

Corporate
and others
TAT
HK$'000

Total
THET
HK$'000

products
TER
HK$'000

BE-2-=F Year ended 31 March 2013

ZAZt+-HLEE
2EWA: Segment revenue:

BETIRER Sales to external customers 86,914 296,426 - 383,340
PEEE Segment results (30,684) (49,595) (315) (80,594)
- Reconciliation:

FSIA Interest income 1,020
BREHA Dividend income 1,137
BERA Finance costs (580)
el — R EEEES  Impairment of an amount due from a

e jointly-controlled entity (2,506)
JFE LB i 1 R BR SR Impairment of amounts due from

HIE associates (1,315)
e —HEE A FEEZURME  Reversal of impairment of an amount

BE due from an associate 430
[ElLEE - Share of losses of:

LA TR Jointly-controlled entities (160)

—BE AT An associate (100)
HEMHELERE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

Pl investments 5,693
HEMB AR 2 Mz Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 287
HalER Loss before tax (76,688)
PEEE Segment assets 58,428 243,638 961 303,027
- Reconciliation:

AOMERE Unallocated assets 128,933

BEE Total assets 431,960

SEERE Segment liabilities 17,247 58,437 410 76,094

- Reconciliation:

KxHEAE Unallocated liabilities 20,129

Bafk Total liabilities 96,223

Hitt 7 BEHR Other segment information:

e R Depreciation and amortisation 2,590 7,813 791 11,194

BARY Capital expenditure 1,431 10,093 8 11,532*
HEWE  BERZEEE  Gain on disposal of items of property,

g FE plant and equipment, net (62) (245) - (307)
FEERE Provision for inventories 362 6,180 - 6,542
EmRERE Product warranty provision 657 203 - 860
[EWE ZEZRE Impairment of trade receivables 26 - - 26
Hi U R E Impairment of other receivables 3,673 8,384 - 12,057
* BARXBEREYE  BEREER * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

RIEFTERA © equipment and deferred development costs.
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4. EBIEER(E) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BABNER EREAM
Personal
communication Strategic Corporate
products products and others Total
THT TEx TET THAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(& E=5) (ZE71) (& &5)) (s E5))
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
H2-ZT——& Year ended 31 March 2012

“A=+-RHItEE
2EWA Segment revenue:

HETIREP Sales to external customers 123,440 355,268 - 478,708
PEEE Segment results (26,461) (47,814) (1,511) (75,786)
£ - Reconciliation:

FEMA Interest income 1,335
R BUA Dividend income 1,134
BERAR Finance costs (511)
JEU — HFIEEEEES  Impairment of an amount due from a

VERED jointly-controlled entity (1,600)
EN-AEBHEER Impairment of amount due from a joint

RE venture partner (1,867)
[EfE — EREHER Share of profit of a jointly-controlled

il entity 423
HAIEE Loss before tax (76,872)
PREE Segment assets 107,545 215,034 9,608 332,187
i - Reconciliation:

RAMEE Unallocated assets 191,772

BEE Total assets 523,959

PEERE Segment liabilities 36,140 bb,577 534 92,251

i Reconciliation:

RAOEBRE Unallocated liabilities 20,155

=L Total liabilities 112,406

HtpEEH Other segment information:

WEREE Depreciation and amortisation 5,909 6,595 2,050 14,654

BRRY Capital expenditure 2,704 28,592 1,017 32,313*
HEME  HMERZEEE  Gain on disposal of items of property,

2 o FE plant and equipment, net (580) (461) - (1,041)
FREME Provision of inventories 1,384 5,967 = 7,351
EmRaiE Product warranty provision 693 500 = 1,193
JEWE ZERTURE Impairment of trade receivables - 8,428 - 8,428
A th YRR E Impairment of other receivables 793 2,422 - 3,215
* BARZBEHAYE  BEREER 3 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

IRIEFABERA © equipment and deferred development costs.
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4. EBEER(E) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
A Geographical information
(a) KEIFEEFZHA (a) Revenue from external customers
—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
TFET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
=N Japan 241,191 258,209
&5 Hong Kong 53,849 88,802
R Middle East 24,582 17,625
=y Taiwan 22,430 43,534
B Europe 13,934 18,056
HE Vietnam 9,385 12,727
R Mainland China
(BBBIN) (other than Hong Kong) 4,078 17,755
JEZEM North America 3,942 14,799
Hith Others 9,949 7,201
383,340 478,708
PR ZMABRERERFP The revenue information above is based on the
RIPTAEHD o locations of the customers.
(b) HEREEE (b)  Non-current assets

—=_ —

=

—E-=F
2013

2012
TAT
HK$'000

FER
HK$’000

H Mainland China
(BBBRIN) (other than Hong Kong) 142,929 140,444
BB Hong Kong 11,987 16,808
HAh, Others 211 335
155,127 157,587

btz EREEEE R ZIR
BEENMEN  AIHEE
BERRID

The non-current assets information above is
based on the locations of the assets and excludes
available-for-sale investments.
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4. EBIEER(E) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
TEEZFER Information about major customers
WAREFERFE  SEAEE Revenue from major customers, each of them
WA10% A = - EHFIAT - amounted to 10% or more of the Group's revenue, are

set out below:
—E—=fF
2013

B A B E @ KEER 4z

Personal

communication Strategic
products products Total
FHERT FHERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEH Customer A - 56,302 56,302
—E—_F
2012

(EPN G RS E m FERE

Personal

communication Strategic
products products Total
FHET THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEL Customer B = 51,038 51,038
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5.

WA - EERA R Kz - R 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

WABERAEEMNE XS - IR Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
FACEEERNEEBEFER the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
EFRERRZITHHNESE o

returns and trade discounts during the year.

WA~ B U A K W ES S 58 o AT a0 An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is
™ as follows:
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
KA Revenue
HEEY Sale of goods 383,340 478,708
Haug A Other income
BRAFELZABRERZ Interest income from investments
& F B U A at fair value through profit or loss 226 427
HRITHEWA Bank interest income 1,020 1,335
PR 7% A Service fee income 4,358 4164
AIHHEREZ Dividend income from
A% S U available-for-sale investments 1,137 1,134
EAh Others 6,758 7,676
13,499 14,736
Hihgz - F58 Other gains, net

NHERRE - B
BRAFERABRRE

Fair value losses, net:
Investments at fair value

ZRE through profit or loss (30) (189)
HEWE - RE NMRE Gain on disposal of items of

TH B 2 W property, plant and equipment 307 1,041
HEHEEREZ Gain on disposal of an available-

Wz for-sale investment 5,693 =

HEMB AR 2 W= Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 35 287 =

6,257 852

19,756 15,588
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6. BAIEIE 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX
REB ZRAIBEE N (FTA) The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
T5)&IE : (crediting):
rEH
Group
—B-Z=F —T—CfF
2013 2012
F#&xT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHFERKA Cost of inventories sold 287,804 343,044
e Depreciation 14 10,182 12,974
FEft L HEREE 2 Recognition of prepaid land lease
7R payments 15 493 476
it 9t K 2% Research and development
S expenses:
BRI Deferred development costs
A 35 Bk R amortised 16 519 1,104
REEFERZ Current year expenditure 57,826 77,170
58,345 78,274
Bt NIETF Minimum lease payments under
LEHERNRE operating leases in respect of
HELZ land and buildings 11,168 11,423
% BRAH BN & Auditors’ remuneration 1,100 1,100
EERAFEX Employee benefit expense
(BREESEHE (including directors’
GEDE remuneration (note 8)):
N EEY Wages and salaries and
Ik benefits in kind 153,632 184,586
RN BI R Pension scheme contributions 7,038 7,627
160,670 192,213
ME N Z=%8 - JFE8 Foreign exchange differences, net 4,259 2,042
FERE Provision of inventories 6,542 7,351
EmiRERE Product warranty provision 860 1,193
UL — &8 B BRI Impairment of an amount due
B * from a joint venture partner* - 1,867
e U — L Rl & 2 Impairment of an amount due
BRFURE * from a jointly-controlled entity* 2,506 1,600
FE UL — Bt & N B BR X Impairment of an amount due
E from an associate* 1,315 =
JE U — Bt = 2 B BR 5K Reversal of impairment of an
BB B * amount due from an associate* (430) =
FEUE 5 BR SR (B * * Impairment of trade receivables** 26 8,428
H b fE UL AR FORE * * * Impairment of other receivables*** 12,057 3,215
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6. BAIFBEGE) 6. LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued)

* U —HEEGHETE —BEQT R * Impairment of amounts due from a jointly-controlled entity,
—BEBHERERRELRER—BEA an associate and a joint venture partner and reversal of
FIBRZORERLD e 2N GEA 2 U impairment of an amount due from an associate are included
mRAPZ [HiZE  F5E] - in “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

** RWE ZERFREBEESRGEAEH ** Impairment of trade receivables is included in “Selling and
WaRPZ [HER DS E ] - distribution expenses” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

**x  HWEWRIURE DB SRGEEEE **%  |mpairment of other receivables is included in the “Administrative
WasRPZ [1TTHEEH] - expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
7. BERAEK 7. FINANCE COSTS

REE

Group
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
F&ET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000

MREFAZEEEZ Interest on bank borrowing wholly

RITEEFE repayable within five years 580 511

2013 BFHE #E(ER)BRAHF 97



B F5 R ak M e (F)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZE—=%=A=++—H 31 March 2013

8. EENRSREEAEME

EEME

BEFEHMAXSAER QR ETR
BEETRAUN EHRY ) RES
AREHEBIE 161G BETHEFANE
EEmT

DIRECTORS’" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

—E——F

2012

FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

ik Fees 416 384
HEinpi< - Other emoluments:

e 2B EEWHZE  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9,762 10,997

HARIDEND 2 B Performance-related incentive payments 75 =

RIRETEIHK Pension scheme contributions 300 356

10,137 11,353

10,553 11,737

(a) BUIFHTEF

ERARNFERNRABIIFATE
EXMWEESWT -

Aok REfEs -

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

—E—=F —F——4F
2013 2012

FTERT TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel sBS,

BEEHE  ATHLT MH, JP 128 128
AT B X, Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 128 128
F®BX Wong Kon Man, Jason 128 128

384 384

P N4 A 37 8 1) B 3L JF AT
ExMEmMe(ZE—=
FE)-

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2012: Nil).
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8. EERESAEEAEME(E) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

EEMES(E) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(b) BITEFER—IFHTEE (b) Executive directors and a non-executive director

e BME  ERTHY
He BEWF= Z®e  BARGEHR el
Salaries, Performance-
allowances related Pension

and benefits incentive scheme Total

Fees in kind payments contributions remuneration
TR TR TAT AT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-=F 2013
HIES: Executive directors:
BERATHT Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2,750 - 60 2,810
BEX Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,707 - 60 2,767
ElEEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 591 - 27 618
RAFME Kazuhiro Otani - 1,704 75 63 1,842
Rk Lee Koon Hung - 1,173 - 54 1,227
FERAH Luk Chui Yung, Judith? - 837 - 36 873
- 9,762 75 300 10,137
FHTES Non-executive director:
BB A Luk Chui Yung, Judith* 32 - - - 32
32 9,762 75 300 10,169
“T——F 2012
HITES Executive directors:
BERATAT Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2,744 - 60 2,804
EER Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,700 - 60 2,760
ERES Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 590 - 27 617
ARE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,692 - 63 1,755
FriE Lee Koon Hung - 1,166 - 54 1,220
BTt Fok Ting Yeung, James* - 1,046 - 44 1,090
ERR Luk Chui Yung, Judith - 1,059 - 48 1,107
- 10,997 - 356 11,353
# BERAZITN_T—=%—AH # Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith was re-designated as non-
—HENZRAENTES ° executive director on 1 January 2013. Among her total
i E 48 Bl <+ 49873,000/5 7T remuneration, approximately HK$873,000 represented
REGEZERIENTESAIZ remuneration for her service before appointment as
RAEE<E - non-executive director.

* EEAFETR_T—=F=A @ Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James resigned as executive director
FARBRERNATMITES ° of the Company with effect from 16 March 2012.
RAFER  WEERF]I(E There was no arrangement under which a director
A] PR ZE K R B I A 1] Bl & waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

ZRE(ZE—ZF : &) - during the year (2012: Nil).
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8. EBENRSNREEAEM=(E)

BREEAEME

MENTFUTEBEzSREEAS
ZAEIT

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

Senior management’s remuneration

The number of senior management whose remuneration
for the year were within the following bands:

—E——F

2012

FET

HK$'000

#£7251,000,000/8 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 2
1,000,001/ L& HK$1,000,001 to

2,000,000 7T HK$2,000,000 - 1

3 3

9. LhEBRSHEES

RAFRAERSHEERTFENA
(Z2——F:WR)EF ' Hie
HBEEHR EXHES - AFEH
B—R(ZFE——F: —R)BRSH
fﬁ’&ﬁ?éki%@% EH S
T

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included four (2012: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the one (2012: one)
highest paid employee who are not directors of the
Company are as follows:

REE
Group
—EB—-=F e
2013 2012
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
w4  RRLREWAHZE  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 927 1,213
RIRET SRR Pension scheme contributions 43 53
970 1,266
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10.

=®F=H=+—H 31 March 2013

BiIR
HRANFEERRERENB AR

BMELEMBAERDET] E&th
BEELBEENSHEGB( T ——
FoE) o AR 2 BB R A
BEDRBEAEELEXBGAEL

BT R T

BIRK ADA RIS
o

10.

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2012: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

——%

2012
TAT
HK$'000

BEFERBRZ Overprovision in prior years
— Hftbi 2 - Elsewhere (31) _
REE — Hfthith = Current — Elsewhere 28 46
ANEEHIE(ERE), B Total tax (credit)/charge
k] for the year (3) 46
i@ FA AT B B 18 30 AN A 7] K H B A reconciliation of the tax credits applicable to loss
ED\T FHEBRATHETFTE 2/ before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
TR HEAEERMERAE 2 HIE Y jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries
t(BE ) EER - A R A R E are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the
( |] EEMER) B R 2 SR effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable

rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax

rates, are as follows:

—E-ZF —T——F
2013 2012
TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRIEE Loss before tax (76,688) (76,872)
BEERRAE 7 HIB Tax at the statutory tax rate (12,910) 16.8 (13,556) 17.6
BEFERBEHAER Adjustments in respect of current tax

TEE of previous periods (31) - - _
ElEEREHNEER— Profits and losses attributable to jointly-

B2 AR REE controlled entities and an associate 43 - (70) 0.1
HRME 2 WA Income not subject to tax (1,507) 2.0 (796) 1.0
NI Expenses not deductible for tax 2,527 (3.3) 1,499 (1.9)
BANEEM HESR  Tax losses utilised from previous periods (894) 1.2 (721) 0.9
AR REEE Tax losses not recognised 12,769 (16.7) 13,690 (17.8)
RAEBEERFRAE 7 Tax (credit)/charge at the Group's

BE(BE),/ Nk effective rate (3) - 46 (0.1)
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11.

12.

13.

=#=A=+—H 31 March 2013

RRAREEEARGEER

BE-_E—=F=A=+—HI*%E
EAXRRRIRERE ARLGEEE
BRE—Z2BNARRIFERERZ
E51875,205,000/8 L (—F ——4F :
62,209,00078 7T ) (KI5E34(b)) °

[ g=)
ExEeTEINEBE_T—=F=

A=t B LFEIRMEMEKSR
—T-_F )

—=

BRERESEAERGE

BEREAEBEDIRERNARQA
KEFEEABEAFEEIB
75,724,000 L (ZE——4F : |5
$873,182,000/8 L) K F N B 1T
BE 15 1,197,663,029 K (= &F — —
1 1,197,663,0290% ) st &

ARBEBE_T—=4=f
=+ —H ISR R
B-HE-F —F=H=+H

L FE N 48 B B T 4 P 2 51 B Ak
EXBRESBRELRHE  REASR
@ﬁﬂi?ﬂiz,ﬁ\ﬁﬁﬂgé’ﬂﬁﬁ{%%ﬁ@
AREEBRRNFHTE  FAiA
Eﬁﬁﬁﬂxf“%tﬁ BE c EAREE
WEEEZE

11.

12.

13.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2013 includes a loss of HK$75,205,000 (2012:
HK$62,209,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March
2013 (2012: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$75,724,000
(2012: loss of HK$73,182,000) and the 1,197,663,029
(2012: 1,197,663,029) shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potential dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 March 2013. No
adjustment had been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the year ended 31 March 2012
in respect of a dilution as the exercise price of the
share options of the Company outstanding during the
prior year was higher than the average market price of
the Company's ordinary shares and, accordingly, the
share options held have no dilutive effect on the basic
loss per ordinary share.
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14. Y% BERRE

rEE

ZE-ZEZA=1+-R 31 March 2013

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

gL
i =2
Leasehold
land and
buildings
TET
HK$000

Group

Leasehold
improve-
ments
TR
HK$'000

R
E ]
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
TET
HK$'000

KER#E IARIE

Plant and
machinery
TiEn
HK$'000

Toolings
and moulds
TR
HK$'000

Motor
vehicles
Ti#En
HK$000

kEIR

Construction
in progress
TR
HK$'000

8%

Total
Tan
HKS$'000

RZE-—EWA—A: At1Apil 2012

KA Cost 76,888 25477 82,923 107,079 132,483 10,805 55,542 491,197

ZiiE Accumulated depreciation

JFeHE and impairment (28,115) (24,650) (80,364) (99,035)  (128,502) (9,006) - (369,672)

FHFE Net carrying amount 48,773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1,799 55,542 121,525
RZZ-—EMA-A - At1April 2012, net of

BAREHHE accumulated depreciation

LA and impairment 48,773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1,799 55,542 121,525
NE Additions - 165 37 760 1,199 - 8,851 11,292
FERER Depreciation provided

bk during the year (1,581) (659) (1,366) (3,827) (2,420) (329) - (10,182)
e Disposals (69) (53) (13) (33) (96) (579) - (843)
1 E7] Exchange realignment 1518 2 45 302 91 35 2,084 4,102
RZE-=%=R At 31 March 2013, net of

=+-A Efk acoumulated deprecation

ZETERA(E and impairment 48,641 307 1542 5,246 2,755 926 66,477 125,894
RZE-Z%=A At 31 March 2013;

Sk

KA Cost 79171 25,036 82,861 96,368 134,161 10,194 66,477 494,268

ZiiE Accumulated depreciation

KA and impairment (30,530) (24,729) (81,319) (91,122)  (131,406) (9,268) - (368,374)
EmEE Net carrying amount 48,641 307 1,542 5,246 2,155 926 66,477 125,894
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14. Y% BERREE)

#

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Group

HELH
kg
Leasehold
land and
buildings
Fin
HK$'000

KA K&

nx%E e
Leasehold  Furniture,
improve- fixtures and
ments  equipment
T TER
HK$'000  HK$'000

BRR#ks TARIE fRIE ]
Construction
in progress
T
HK$'000

Plant and
machinery
T
HK$'000

Motor
vehicles
Tin
HK$'000

Toolings
and moulds
Thn
HK$'000

Total
Thn
HK$'000

ZE-ZE=F=1-A 31March2012
RZZ——EWmA—H: A1 April 2011:
AA Cost 75408 25,451 84853 113024 127915 11332 2973% 467,719
ZiNE Accumulated depreciation
R and impairment (25,630) (24,713) (79,703)  (101,705)  (124,718) (10,159) - (366,628)
BEFE Net carrying amount 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1173 29,736 101,091
RZE——EME—F -  At1Apil 2011, net of
BARZHE accumulated depreciation
IE and impairment 49,778 738 5,150 11,319 3,197 1173 29,736 101,091
AE Additions - 62 853 368 3,933 1,023 25,347 31,586
AERHR Depreciation provided
ik during the year (1,986) 275) (3473) 3,919) (3,176) (145) - (12,974
e Disposals - - (21) = = 280) = (301)
i Fd Transfers - 266 - - - - (256) -
E 5 25 Exchange realignment 981 46 50 276 2 28 715 2123
RZE-—F=R At 31 March 2012, net of
=+-A ik accumulated deprecation
2R and impaiment 48773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1799 85542 121,505
R=E-=F=§ At 31 March 2012:
Sk
KA Cost 76,888 25477 82,923 107,079 132,483 10,805 55,542 491,197
ZiriE Accumulated depreciation
K& and impairment (28,115) (24,650) (80,364) (99,035)  (128,502) (9,006) - (369,672)
EEEE Net carrying amount 48,773 827 2,559 8,044 3,981 1,799 55,542 121,625
RBERRAEEHE +it0 RIETF The net book values of the Group's leasehold land and
ZEEFELTAT buildings at the end of the reporting period are analysed

as follows:

HK$'000

REBZHEHEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 8,016 8,297
RAE R FERAE Medium term leases in Mainland China 40,625 40,476
48,641 48,773
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15. S LBEERTE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E——4F
2012
FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REA—BZEREE Carrying amount at 1 April 17,477 17,531
NAEEZEEHR(ME6) Recognised during the year (note 6) (493) (476)
IE 7 E 7 Exchange realignment 656 422
R=A=+—HZEMEE Carrying amount at 31 March 17,640 17,477
GIATERTZRIE « #4 K% Current portion included in prepayments,
HifEBRT 2 iBEH  deposits and other receivables (478) (460)
JEm BN EB1D Non-current portion 17,162 17,017
MEITHOERPRIG AP FHEE The leasehold lands are held under medium term
B/A - leases and are situated in Mainland China.
16. IEZEBA KA 16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

—E——F
2012
TFAET
HK$'000
REA—A : At 1 April:
D% Cost 38,836 38,128
Rt Accumulated amortisation
KA and impairment (37,946) (36,863)
IREEE Net carrying amount 890 1,265
R A—HZKAK - Cost, net of accumulated amortisation
VB R EHE S RORE and impairment, at 1 April 890 1,265
188 H0— A =6 7 B Additions — internal development 240 727
IR S B g B Amortisation provided during the year
(MizE6) (note 6) (519) (1,104)
I 27| Exchange realignment (18) 2
R=A=+—8H At 31 March 593 890
MN=RA=+—8: At 31 March:
%N Cost 39,013 38,836
Rt Accumulated amortisation
KRB and impairment (38,420) (37,946)
BREEE Net carrying amount 593 890
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17. MBRARIZKRE 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
PN/
Company
—E——F
2012
FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FELEFERE - IR Unlisted investments, at cost 269,256 269,256
JE UL B B A =) BR R Due from subsidiaries 767,266 767,253
1,036,522 1,036,509
B ORE Less: Impairment # (502,256) (427,256)
534,266 609,253
P& BT B A B BR 5K Due to subsidiaries
(MizE41) (note 41) (198,897) (198,667)
# BARAEEE THE A RFERSEE # Impairments were recognised for investments in subsidiaries

8 EREAEES 5 4A269,256,000
BT (=T — = : 269,256,000/
7T ) }% 767,266,000 T ( —ZF — =
£ : 767,253,000/ 7)) (RO FBREE
B8 A1) Z B A 7] 2 1% & K e Ut
BARBRRERRE - RAFER
FEHNEFR75,000,0008 L (—ZE— =
£ : 61,000,000/8 7T ) 2 FE U B A
AIBRFRZRE °

and amounts due from subsidiaries with a carrying
amount of HK$269,256,000 (2012: HK$269,256,000)
and HK$767,266,000 (2012: HK$767,253,000) (before
deducting the impairment loss), respectively, because
certain subsidiaries of the Group have been making losses
persistently. During the year, an additional impairment of
HK$75,000,000 (2012: HK$61,000,000) was recognised on the
amounts due from subsidiaries.

WEBARCIRERBEZEWT The movement in the impairment of investments in
subsidiaries is as follows:

KAT

Company
—E—=5F —E——F
2013 2012
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REA—H At 1 April 427,256 366,334
B IR RER Impairment losses recognised 75,000 61,000
AR 2 BR X Amount written off - (78)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 502,256 427,256
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17. MBRARZRE(E) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AN = R D [ R e
BRARZASEEMBOR - ARE
KRB AR 2 REEBBERRE
FR - SEBERMNEARE TR
ZREBREETHHRKFEE
AR 2

BRER—FREEZEKHEARR
BR7£3,000,0008 L (— T — — 4 :
3,000,000 7T ) - Mt B A Al R X
EHRBERE  RENEETEN
Hl-ZBEERAE B LltSEEN K
BRAIZEHR B TS EREHRE
+—EAREE  WRPFBERIE
N5 BIERE -

TEMBRATZFBWT ¢

At the end of each reporting period, the Company
assesses the prospects and financial position of its
subsidiaries, on an individual basis, as to whether
there is any indication of impairment of its investments
in subsidiaries or any impairment loss previously
recognised for subsidiaries in prior years may no longer
exist or may need to be adjusted accordingly.

Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$3,000,000 (2012: HK$3,000,000) which are
repayable within one year, the balances with
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors, the balances with subsidiaries are
not repayable within twelve months from the end
of the reporting period except for the amounts
aforementioned and are therefore shown in the
statement of financial position as non-current.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

HEMRYL/ EMER BRTEERE/ ARrEGEREZ
R HEfRAEE At
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value Percentage of
registration and of issued ordinary/ equity attributable
operations registered share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# M
Direct Indirect
SRRBREXBRAR EE 10087 - 100 REZRK
Concept Technology Industries Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
Limited
Favourable Outcome Limited* RERELES e - 100 HEZK
British Virgin Islands US$1 Investment holding
("BVI")
ERDEMEFHRARY HhEARENE 65,000,000/ 7T - 100 RERHETFER
Global Asia High-tech Electronics (TR@),/$hE HK$65,000,000 Manufacture and trading of
Co., Ltd. M* The People’s Republic electronic products
of China (The “PRC")/
Mainland China
Group Sense (China) Limited* RERELES ES 100 - REER
BVI US$1 Investment holding
Group Sense (Dongguan) Limited* HEBRLZEE,/TH 10T - 100 HEWME
BVI/Mainland China US$10 Property holding
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17. WBRARZKRE(E)

Group Sense (Holding) Limited*

Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited*

EEEES NERAR"

Group Sense Cyberspace Limited*

AEERAA

Group Sense Limited

BESERRAR
Group Sense Manufactory
Company Limited

REBHRBEERAA
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited

FEEPDAERER A Al
Group Sense PDA Holdings
Limited

BEEZELERARAR
Group Sense PDA Limited

17.

AR, R
ey

Place of incorporation/

registration and
operations

EERIEE
BVI

EERIEE
BVI

BED

Samoa

BB
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

HERE

Cayman Islands

EE
Hong Kong

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTLERE/

M RAEE

Nominal value

of issued ordinary/
registered share capital

3,000 7T
US$3,000

5
US$1

100%7T
US$100

LmiR1,000/87T
ERFEFELE
ERERR17200,000/8 T2
Ordinary shares
HK$1,000 Non-voting
5% deferred shares
HK$200,000 @

28T
HK$2

28T
HK$2

EBM2,115,837E T
ABBERR7182ET
Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837

Series A preferred shares
US$17,182

1007 7T
HK$100

ARrEGEREZ
BAk
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

B

Direct

100

100

100

98.95

G

Indirect

100

100

98.95

98.95

Principal activities

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

BHRUETTES
Design and trading of
electronic products

REER

Investment holding

BHRUETTES
Design and trading of
electronic products

REER

Investment holding

FARHEETER
Design and trading of
electronic products

108

Group Sense (International) Limited Annual Report 2013



Bt F5 R A M e (4

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZE—=%=H=++—H 31 March 2013

17. MBRARZRE(E) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

AR R R

gy

Place of incorporation/
registration and

operations

BRTEERE/ ARrEGEREZ
EMRAEE Aol TEXH
Nominal value Percentage of
of issued ordinary/ equity attributable
registered share capital to the Company Principal activities
E# CE:

Direct  Indirect

BEHHRR(EH)BRAA B 100 7T - 100 HEEK

Group Sense Software Technology Hong Kong HK$100 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited

R TNT £ A B 60,000,0008 - 100 FtRHEEFER

Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense* Japan JPY60,000,000 Design and trading of

electronic products

Supreme Style Technology HERIEHE 1003 7T - 100 BEERK
Limited* BVI US$100 Investment holding
BRAARBHAREERAA M,/ e AR#50,000,00070 - 51 REANHEESFERRLMG
(AR @)* The PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 Design and trading of
electronic products and
software
B3 - Notes:
(1) ZHNERA] © (1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.
(2) I RE A% 10 NI 45 BT 5 MR AR B s B i G R AR (2) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to receive

RAMEFBRRA R 2 38 & 3 AR R
REXNKREG LRFEZHERN - TREEES
BEZ2EEM SR

notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the company or
to participate in any distribution on winding up.

(3) RRBEKY 2 FINEERE - (3) Sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the PRC.
* REBB RGN EBRE MRS e Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of

FTEM S5 PRI A B PR A% ©

EREIEZTA/UAREE 2 RF
EXEREAXESIAKAEEE
EFECEREMNMBEBAR - &
SRR REEMHE AR ZFE
REERHBNITR

the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

18. HEZHFERBZRE 18.

——f
2012
THET
HK$'000
EEEEFE Share of net assets 1,523 1,387
g B e Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
8,203 8,067
U —HRIFEHIE FERZ  Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity 5,706 7,477
T /}ﬁkﬁ# Less: Impairment # (5,706) (3,200)
8,203 12,344
F’g”ﬂl L[R5 1 B 58 Amounts due from jointly-controlled
AR — B entities — current 195 _
FE U — L[R2 ) B R AR KD B AR The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity
HEZEHERBZIRER - BEK included in investments in jointly-controlled entities is
#Fo2ERkBEreaREHARE unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable within
TZEARNEE - WRERE B twelve months from the end of the reporting period and

JiE U ££ [R] 4% ) B A€ BR 30 195,00078
T(ZE——F : E)DBEREAE

BRBEEY  REER . - 28K

BB EE N o

# HRASEE N2 — HRZEGHER
RERNLEXELE  WEREEE
5,706,000 /& 7T ( & 1 B 5 B & 18
AI)(=Z— =4 : 7,477,000/ 7¢T)
2R — HE I GE 33&?&1’:&%@5}@%
65,706,000 0 ( =T — Z F :
3,200,000/ 7T ) ©

JEUR — K E T B B2 R R E B s

ZEBMT -

is therefore shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position as non-current.

The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities of
HK$195,000 (2012: Nil), included in the Group's current
assets, are unsecured, interest-free and no fixed term
of repayment.

# An impairment of HK$5,706,000 (2012: HK$3,200,000) was
recognised for the amount due from a jointly-controlled entity
with a carrying amount of HK$5,706,000 (before deducting the
impairment loss) (2012: HK$7,477,000) because this jointly-
controlled entity has been inactive during the year.

The movements in the provision for impairment of
an amount due from a jointly-controlled entity are as
follows:

2012

FHT

HK$'000

R E ) At the beginning of year 3,200 1,600
BERBEEE Impairment loss recognised 2,506 1,600
REFK At the end of year 5,706 3,200
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18. HEE4IBE®BZIRE(E) 18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
HEEHI TR 50T Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as
follows:
FiEEE R
B/ f Bt
EMERFEE FTM BUBE FEEEm  RRE
Particulars
of issued
shares held/ Place of Percentage of
registered incorporation/ Ownership  Voting Profit
capital paid registration interest power sharing Principal activities
HERRERAR 700,000% @& BE 35 35 3% EEEH
Neoplatec Technology SREEIST Hong Kong Dormant
Company Limited 700,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1 each

ERMRBERAEBRAR  ARY5401,5507T HhE 19.78 20 1978 HELBEET
(T2E#HEZ]) RMB5,401,550 The PRC BESM

Chongging New Standard Manufacture and
Medical Equipment Co., trading of electronic
Ltd. (“Chongging New medical appliances
Standard”)

BEHEARAT 1,000% BB 33 33 3B REER

GS Solutions Limited SREEET Hong Kong Investment holding

1,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

T HEEIEHERE Z2IEEBRART The above investments in jointly-controlled entities are
MEFA - indirectly held by the Company.

TRIAPARER 2 HEIEGIFEE The following table illustrates the summarised financial
BERHE information of the Group's jointly-controlled entities:

—E2-= —E—=F
2013 2012

TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

FE(G R G|E 4 2 EE  Share of the jointly-controlled entities’

MEE : assets and liabilities:

MENEE Current assets 2,012 1,676
EMBNEE Non-current assets 734 877
mENA & Current liabilities (1,223) (1,166)
BEFE Net assets 1,523 1,387
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18. HEZEHIBERZKRE(E) 18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
T35 S5 R AN 2 [E 2 L [F] 42 ) B AE B The following table illustrates the summarised financial
BERE : information of the Group's jointly-controlled entities:
—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE(G A E B Share of the jointly-controlled
LS entities’ results:
WA Revenue 1,551 1,584
H U A Other income 143 10
1,694 1,594
Skt Total expenses (1,854) (1,171)
Ti1& (E38) 55 A (Loss)/profit after tax (160) 423
19. BEQT2KRE 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
REE
Group
—E-=F —T——F
2013 2012
FHBT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
[E(EEEFE Share of net assets - _
JiE Ui Bt 2 R B BR SR Amounts due from associates 13,602 10,788
R O E Less: Impairment * (10,274) (9,365)
3,328 1,423
JfE L Bt 2 R &) BR 303,328,00078 7T The amounts due from associates of HK$3,328,000
(ZZF——4% :1,423,000/87T) T3 (2012: HK$1,423,000), included in the Group’s current
BERASERBEES - HEK assets, are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
- REREETENH - terms of repayment.
# ARALEAREEE N 2BERRFE # An impairment was recognised for the amounts due from
$R5E1E - E BLERE(E 13,602,000 associates with a carrying amount of HK$13,602,000 (before
BT (RMBRBEEEN) (ZE—= deducting the impairment loss) (2012: HK$10,788,000)
£ 1 10,788,0007 7T ) 2 FE UL Bt & because these associates of the Group have been making
AR IERBE © losses persistently.
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19. BEQATRZRE(E) 19.

RS A R R R AR R BB
T

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of
amounts due from associates are as follows:

rEH

Group
—E-—=F —EF——4F
2013 2012
F#&xT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RER] At the beginning of year 9,365 9,350
BB EEER Impairment losses recognised 1,315 =
BB R D Impairment losses reversed (430) _
& 5 571 Exchange realignment 24 15
RER At the end of year 10,274 9,365

TERANT T EENT

EET=E £h)
B0+ 15

Particulars
of issued
shares held

EREEEAEBR AR (TER])*
ACME Tech Precision
Moulds Limited (“ACME")*

3,500 i
BREEVET
3,500 ordinary

shares of HK$1 each

BMNERERERDA]
(MeMz+R1)

Sinocard Technology Limited
("Sinocard”)

45,0003 Ak
BREETET
45,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

BEEBRRAERLDA]
(TEBZR)

Group Sense Plastic Technology
Company Limited (“GSPT")

100,000 3@ %
BREETET
100,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

* REEB LK GBI EME 3
KB E RSB AR B B o

AL, R L B

Place of
incorporation/
registration

AR

Hong Kong

B8
Hong Kong

e
Hong Kong

TEE
LA
EZEzEDL
Percentage

of ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group

35

45

38

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Principal
activities

THEEERHKE

Manufacture
and trading of
moulds

EAEES

Dormant

BEER
Investment
holding

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
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19. BEQARZRE(E) 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
FREVESRAEHEARER 7 ANE The above table lists the associates of the Group
EEEAEATESEKAERE which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
EFETEI D 2B E NG - TS affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
RE - REEMBENFNFES portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
BYERBRITEK o of other associates would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
REEEE ZBE N TIIRE » IR The Group's shareholdings in the associates all
AARNRIE2ENB R RIFAE ZIRHE comprise equity shares held through wholly-owned
PR o subsidiaries of the Company.
BREMEEBEZAREEBAN The Group has discontinued the recognition of its
EFNBMENTIZIRE  WAEEH share of losses of ACME, Sinocard and GSPT because
BERIFEREELZER - BMNEFR the share of losses of these associates exceeded the
LEEBBHER NEBKRER Group's investments in the associates. The Group's
B E QAN AFERNERERR unrecognised share of losses of these associates for
—_E-=ZF=ZA=+—HZ:2 the current year and their accumulated losses at 31
BB oAl A&1,779,0008 T (=& March 2013 amounted to HK$1,779,000 (2012: share
— — 4 : fE{§ % A 765,000 IT ) of profit of HK$765,000) and HK$6,625,000 (2012:
56,625,000/ 0 (Z&F — —4F : HK$4,846,000), respectively.
4,846,00077T) °
TRAPHANREEREERER 2AEE The following table illustrates the summarised financial
Bt N RIS E R E ¢ information of the Group’s associates extracted from
their management accounts:
—E—=F —E——%F
2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BiE Assets 10,834 8,206
BE Liabilities (25,392) (17,689)
WA Revenue 3,271 7,250
REEZ(EHR) B (Loss)/profit for the year (5,319) 1,779
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20.

21.

AHEERSE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—E——F
2012
FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEETRRHEIRE - 3Rk 7N Unlisted equity investments, at cost 46,425 48,218
S mE Less: Impairment * (10,000) (10,000)
36,425 38,218
# HREERRAXRE  WEREEE # An impairment was recognised for an unlisted investment

32,055,0005% 7t (1 B 6k B &5 18 A )
(ZZ——% : 32,055,000/67C) 2 —
FELHIREERRE - RAFARE
WEEE(ZT——F : &) -

i E BRI LR EE F R
B HEEERAHLERE -

R-_TE—=%F=A=+—H" 3+t
MREREENSEAFEGES
BrZ=RFERNKE RBEER
BN FETEER] S = M A AN
BEBBEBEYE -  NEEIWHEST
BEREBHRNLEZERE -

REZS

BEMEARARE RS HH
ZERMEEEIRY BIE R -

21.

with a carrying amount of HK$32,055,000 (before deducting
the impairment loss) (2012: HK$32,055,000) due to the non-
performance of the investment. There was no movement in
the impairment during the year (2012: Nil).

The above investments consist of investments in
unlisted equity securities which were designated as
available-for-sale investments.

As at 31 March 2013, the unlisted equity investments
were stated at cost less impairment because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not
intend to dispose of them in the near future.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets relate to deposits for which there was
no recent history of default.
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22. 7€ 22. INVENTORIES

T ——F

2012

FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERE Raw materials 42,920 55,046

ERE Work in progress 11,655 8,328

K m Finished goods 10,979 13,993

65,554 77,367

23. EWEZSERM 23. TRADE RECEIVABLES
REE
Group

—EB—=F e

2013 2012

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEULE 5 AR Trade receivables 73,188 75,306

B Impairment (16,189) (15,666)

56,999 59,640
AEEHERFP B TEUEE The Group's trading terms with its customers are
FRETT o B —M N F60£90 mainly on credit. The credit period is generally 60 to
X BEARFEEEAEERE ° 90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
AR B SK A 5 R B 2 B The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
FRIRE 1T BRAG TR I B A5 S B R outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk.
REXKEK =RhEEETHEM:A Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
B2 8RR o NSRBI A K IR ICE management. The Group does not hold any collateral
SRR ERF AT E R M EAM or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
EERARE - BIE SERTE balances. Trade receivables are interest-free. Please
ME - EERRERFIEFLHM refer to note 43 for details of credit risk management.

743 °

116 Group Sense (International) Limited Annual Report 2013



Bt F5 R A M e (4

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

— =
—=

23.

=®F=H=+—H 31 March 2013

EWE SRR (E)

T ARKE ZRFRBREHRN
4 #44516,189,000/8 T (T — =
% :115,666,000/8 70 ) & &4 X EIHA
HZBRE 1T

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due
dates and net of provisions of HK$16,189,000 (2012:
HK$15,666,000), is as follows:

rEEH
Group
—E-=F —T—_fF
2013 2012
FE T FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
DR60K Within 60 days 49,776 56,203
61—90X 61 — 90 days 634 267
HBiBI0K Over 90 days 6,589 3,170
56,999 59,640
FE W E 5 BR SRR E B 2 E B i The movements in the provisions for impairment of
N trade receivables are as follows:
rEH
Group
—E-=F —T——fF
2013 2012
TE T FHIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REH At the beginning of year 15,666 7,133
BEEERER (Hize6) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 26 8,428
JE 5 &7 Exchange realignment 497 105
JTAG SRS At the end of year 16,189 15,666
FuiEINE BEE SO ERE s Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
& B 4 S5 (B e Uk BB 5 BR =k 2 B receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
16,189,000 L ( = & — — £ receivables of HK$16,189,000 (2012: HK$15,666,000)
15,666,000 7T ) H 42 BR & B8 & with a gross carrying amount of HK$16,189,000 (2012:
16,189,000 8 L ( — & — — &F HK$16,093,000). The individually impaired trade
16,093,000 7T ) ° & Bl 48 5 (B FE receivables relate to customers that were in default
qﬂzﬁgﬁﬁmgﬁg%}imﬁqj@@m or delinquent in payments and only a portion of the

A - T T U R AR K
Z—&kn e

receivables is expected to be recovered.
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23. EWEZBER(E)

3 4 {8 5l sk H R AR S 78 TORE 2 F&
WE SRR RE DT

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

T F

2012

T

HK$'000

RBEINERVE Neither past due nor impaired 46,042 45,811
iBH—Z= I fE A 1 to 2 months past due 3,734 10,046
BHME=EA 2 to 3 months past due 634 267
BHBA=A Over 3 months past due 6,589 3,089
56,999 59,213

REEI TR RE 2 FE W AR KB K
oMM EFPEIRHY EIERT
ﬁf{ o

B8 BB &R E < R AR B I A
SEZERBEREFNTF - RIEG
sk ARREERR ARG
[BEGIES - qCIRN- €23Vl X -/
TR E R

24, ANNIE  REREAEYIERR

24.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

REH AT

Group Company
—E-=F —T——F ZB—Z= —E——4F
2013 2012 2013 2012
FE T FHET THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEfFRIE Prepayments 5,770 7,607 200 213
Be Deposits 3,678 2,847 - -
H i fE U BR X Other receivables 41,341 37,101 - =
B Impairment (17,139) (5,082) - -
33,550 42,473 200 213

e EBRIRE - REREE
Hip EWARTKE R -

None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. The
provision for impairment relates to other receivables.
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24. ﬁﬁ' R1E - HEREMEWERF 24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

=) RECEIVABLES (continued)

P EmEREBERRERER Included in the above provision for impairment of
15 B Bl A& R E H ’rHlFE WEBE R 2 other receivables is a provision for an impaired other
B#17,139,0008 T (=T — = receivable of HK$17,139,000 (2012: HK$5,082,000)
F : 5,082, OOO,% YEHEEEA with a carrying amount of HK$31,361,000 (2012:
31,361,000 5 ( =& — — £F HK$28,051,000). The individually impaired other
28,051,000 7T ) ° (@B & RE & receivables relate to debtors that were in default
b, JfE Ui BR X EE /R (& A B /K Sk 1B SR X or delinquent in payments and only a portion of
IBA R - TBHERE o] Uk O] it 5 e Uk B the receivables is expected to be recovered. The
RZ— 3 Mn o NEBIWET I ZE 4 Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
ﬁ%%—*}ﬁ{{ K Gk =B enhancements over this balance.

25 o

H B H D FiE U BR 2R R 4 BA U8 A R The remaining balance of other receivables are neither
B & B 1A R L7 3 B P 48 #6 K GC 8% past due nor impaired and relates to a large number
R AT o of independent parties for whom there was no recent

history of default.

25. BAVFERABGRZRE 25. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

rEEH
Group
—E-=F —E-CF

2013 2012
FTERT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

JEFTHESES  IRATFE  Unlisted debt security, at fair value

—EHFNETFFES - Debenture with fixed interest rate
55%EPEAE-ZT of 5.5% per annum with maturity
—MEMA=Z+N\B date on 28 April 2014 - 8,261
HER-_Z—=F=-AZHILFE The Group had disposed of the unlisted debt security
W AEEEEELRFIELMES during the year ended 31 March 2013. The above
TH o LN EMEFEFSFEH unlisted debt security was classified as held for trading.
FEARHLEE -
BATELABRRIREZAT The fair value of investments at fair value through profit
ELAR 3R 25 HA R & S 15 FH) 4 SR IR 1% or loss is determined based on the quoted bid prices at
BABEEE - the close of business at the end of the reporting period.
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26. HehBREEEHEH

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PN

Company
—E =
2012 2012
T FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B4 RRTES Cash and bank balances 80,782 101,147 103 203
EHFR Time deposits - 37,843 - _
HE MRS ZEER Cash and cash equivalents 80,782 138,990 103 203

RMEHR  ZEBAARE( A
REDFEZREE MRS EEEH
/15,077,000 (=T ——F :
42,496,000 7L) - ARETRF B
HABRABHME - R - REF
Bl N B IR AR e 4B DB - BB R AT
EEEHATE  IAEEEEEZRER
AN EELEBNRITEARE
HEHME o

RITB2 HIREBERITFARTER
AR 2 TF B REEUF B o AT AR
SEFREHFR - EHTERFK
ZHRAR - N F—RE={EAF
F - WIRE B 28 E P73 A =
FREA B o SRITERFHN AR
ER B A0 ¥ R kAL 8k A IR
1T e

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$15,077,000
(2012: HK$42,496,000). RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.
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27. EHESRRM 27.

AT RIERNE S RFN RS PRI
NAREH A Z BREe AT

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the payment due dates,
is as follows:

REH

Group
—EB—=F —E—_F
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
A EN Within 60 days 38,507 36,845
61—90XK 61 — 90 days 226 746
HBiE90K Over 90 days 4,656 2,075
43,389 39,666

RENESRAEZFTZNFNE - B—
YN N

28. HiEMRARKEFEE 28.

H i & {F IR X M R 5T BB I T
B BAREXRESR -

29. MHESHRITEE 29.

ME

RITIEE - B
WAR—FR
E&E

Current

year

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 60-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables and accruals are interest-free and
repayable on demand.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

—EB—=F
2013
rEH
Group

—E—_F

2012

REE

Group
BRERAI=
(%)
Effective
interest
rate (%)

ERFIZE
(%)
Effective
interest
rate (%)

TAT
HK$'000

Bank borrowing, unsecured
and repayable within one

2.9 20,000 2.9 20,000

R-ZB—=%F=A=+—H8 &2
AIMAEEZRITERIREASH
55,000,000 8 T 2 R (ZE— =
£ 1 55,000,000/ 7T) °

ARE 2 BT EANBTHE
IR E S RIT R E B
RI%2.5% (=% ——F : BBRIT
RS9 800 FI 5 2.5%) 3 8 2
M -

The Company has guaranteed the Group's bank
borrowing amounted to HK$55,000,000 (2012:
HK$55,000,000) as at 31 March 2013.

The Group's bank borrowing is denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, unsecured, bears interest at HIBOR plus
2.5% (2012: HIBOR plus 2.5%) per annum and is short
term in nature.
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30.

31.

B’E 30. PROVISION
rEH Group

EmRE
Product
warranties
THERT
HK$’000
R-ZT——FPPA—H At 1 April 2012 2,046
BN Additional provision 860
RAFANE) A Amounts utilised during the year (735)
bE 27| Exchange realignment (112)
RZZE—Z=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2013 2,059

AEEBBDETEMATFREM
MERE - RUEERETEER
it BBRIREEMBENE
& MR EIE RN B EEMAE © & fba
AEESFEETRS  LIEEEE
B

EAER

AEERBE BT EAIREBELE
B R 75 B8 45314,820,0008 7T ( —
T — Z 4 : 245,482,000/ 7T ) -
I e g E R BRI SHE A B BB 1B/
NEM KRR ERE S A o ANEE TR
AR E 474,935,000 T ( — &
— 4 152,071,000/ 7T ) B9 T FE 1S
B UARAR—ZERFREHEE
RERT A o EHBAREE
BE—BEHARAHEEREFT
RAEBEHENB AR AIEAZH
HEE SptEEEms - Tk
BRBEERIBEE o

31.

The Group provides two-year warranties to its customers
on certain of its electronic products, under which
faulty products are repaired or replaced. The amount
of provision is estimated based on sales volumes and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.

DEFERRED TAX

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
before IRD assessment of HK$314,820,000 (2012:
HK$245,482,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$74,935,000 (2012: HK$52,071,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised by these subsidiaries.
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31.

32.

=®F=H=+—H 31 March 2013

ERERE ()
RBHBEEEMETOE NP EX
4Z%§¢¥ﬁ%l&§%*ﬁz

REBEBWI0% 2 BT - B1E
ﬁmﬁm_ggﬂi A—BEx
M WERAR_—_ZEZTLF+ A
St BZBRELEZEF - fHhE
HINRIREEMBRAEER M
I BB - B IR BT S
RGH - AKEMS - @AKRE
5% ° FEI - AEEAR N HE
R zHBARIN —_ZEENFE—H
—BUABREEZ BN IR Z S
BANE B -

R-B—=F=A=+—H " KE
lIﬁﬁF¢lﬁ42W%

Bt = 2 A ﬂ?ﬂ%ﬁl*[ﬁ
%ﬂﬁEEZEHkME%H%W
EARERIA §$w% It 25 Bf
BRR - BERRRHARESER

Eﬂi*XTKT%%&%wE
FiJ o ‘ﬁiﬁf A BN B Y

BAF - ERZHEBRBEAF
z&é I*ﬁ%iiﬁ%ﬁ%%
(ZE—ZF &) -

RN ) [A) E A% R S AN A AR B A Y
BFISMHER -

SN

AT ¢

3,000,000,000
(ZF—=%:
3,000,000,000) & 5@ A%

Authorised:
3,000,000,000
(2012: 3,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

31.

32.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2013, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding dividend taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings, that are subject to
withholding dividend taxes of the Group's subsidiaries,
associates, and jointly-controlled entities established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled entities will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. There was no significant temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates in Mainland
China at the end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

—E—=F
2013
FET
HK$°000

THET
HK$'000

HRXMEE0.108 T 300,000 300,000
BETRHC Issued and fully paid:
1,197,663,029 1,197,663,029
(—2——%F: (2012: 1,197,663,029)
1,197,663,029) L imA% ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
HHREE0.108 T 119,766 119,766
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33.

BRESTE

ARBIRMBEAEEI([5H8]]) -
gHEAE - ol kBREAAEER
HERMHBIMELERERZA
BR2HEE -FEZAER2HEE
BRERARAZEEZ(BRBUIFH
TEER) AEEZHMEERS
AEBE - AEBEBRRSTMERE
BEXBRRIAL -8R _-F
T_FPAH = BREMA R (B IEIA
HAh 5 A EH BT RIERIFR) B
ZEEER - BMEATEF -

RIBET 8IS AT E R TR B R1TE
ZEEREZIRMEE - MBI
FRREEITERN AR AR
BB #ETRN 210% ° AT EE
BERZEEPER1218 8 HAEE
BAcEmA] TRITZRMEE - R
B AN 2 AMEAAT B ) 2 39T A

1% ° (EAA] 8 i R i 60 8 A i 1 2
Eiﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁ@%ﬁ%%ﬁ

MARBIZES  ZRTBRAEK
FTERRIBEEETM2BEALR
i i R NN S Ve 5 |
TEEZAAME o o - WRNMER
12 AABHBRARF 2 EERE
KB TEERFESE 28
BATRLBREMEZET KRG

B HBiE AR BT RS TR
M2Z01%KEMIRM 2 BERBIE
5,000,000/8 7T (IEE L E B AR F]
BRDER) - A|ELAERRER
BAE EHbAE -

EYAREBRTHME21EZ
EHA BNBERESKIETLLZ
SEAREUNEZRBRE - DY
BRENTERIRESRE B
AEFBEAERFARETNERRE
BTERFTEERA 2 BHER -

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operated a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating, attracting
and retaining eligible participants whose contribution
are vital to the long term growth and profitability of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company's directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees or officers of the
Group, advisers or consultants of the Group, or any
person that have business relationship with the Group.
The Scheme was adopted on 2 April 2002 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval
in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on
a date which is determinable by the directors and is not
later than the expiry date of the Scheme.
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33.

34.

BRESE(E)

BREZITEEIRESRE  #
AEHER T ol B E =& () A QA
P {0 FE B AR 4R T B R A B X2 T PIT
FHWHE : (AR B) RO ERBK
R T H A ER 5 A EB A
PrEl e FHWHE « Ri) AR =K
HEVEE -

T R Y R B T 45 A A R AR B Bk
REREZLREZEN -

REFA - REFFHE - THIRBRE
il ARITHE

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of offer of the share options;
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer, and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under
the Scheme during the prior year:

—E——F
2012
INEFHITEE RIHESR
Weighted

Number
of options
T

‘000

average
exercise price

PBIT
HK$ per share

REA] At the beginning of year 0.584 8,265
F AR Forfeited during the year 0.584 (335)
F AR Lapsed during the year 0.584 (7,930)
NGRS At the end of year _

HER _Z——F#=A=+—HIt
FERN - RBEFEARTE ZBEBR
EEE2IHER BERZ-_ZT—=
F—E——F=ZRA=1+—HILFE
A - RRRIREBFT S BARITEE
AR HE o

f#E

(a) A&KEH
AEBRAFERBEFE
REEEBEREZEH 2NN

B 15 % & B 47 B 2 & M
BHERA -

34.

All share options granted in prior years expired during
the year ended 31 March 2012. No share options of the
Company were outstanding under the Scheme during
the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 47 of the financial
statements.
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34. f#E(E)

34. RESERVES (continued)

(a) AEHE(E) (a) Group (continued)
REB 2R FEERE The Group's special reserve represents the
—NN=F KRR KM LT difference between the nominal value of the
BIFTET 2 AE B EA Mk E shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
ZHBARRM A AR the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of
BEERO MBI ARRR the Company's shares in 1993, and over the
NEEZER - nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.
(b) ZARQF (b) Company
R BiRE
RAKERE  SAR%  HORE fE  2iFR &g
Share Capital Share
premium Contributed redemption option Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses Total
[ifz FhL AL AL i T T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z——EMmA—F At 1 April 2011 409,710 21,976 419 2,856 (82,051) 352,910
AEE2AEE Total comprehensive loss
k] for the year i - - - = (62,209) (62,209)
SRR/ RUEEIRIE  Transfer of share option
&1 7 BE reserve upon the lapse/
E1 forfeiture of share
options - - = (2,856) 2,856 -
W-E—-%=F  At31 March 2012 and
=t-Hk=% 1 April 2012
——FMA—H 409,710 21,976 419 - (141,404) 290,701
AEEZEAEE Total comprehensive loss
ek for the year " - - - - (75,205) (75,205)
RZT-Z£ZHF  At31 March 2013
=+-H 409,710 21,976 419 = (216,609) 215,496

KRB ZHBANBBIERE
—MN=ZFEERABZEKH LS
AIFTET 2 S B EAMUKEE 2
B ARG 2 A EBREA
R ER D MBEITZ AR A
BOBEEZID - BIEERE
NRE1981 © —EARIAIES
FERT  UBARBBEARNZ
FEREMKBIEH DK ©

The Company's contributed surplus represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’'s shares in 1993, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, a company may make
distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

126

Group Sense (International) Limited Annual Report 2013



Bt F5 R A M e (4

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

—ZE—=%=H=++—H 31 March 2013

35. HEHBAE 35. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
—E—=F
2013
FExT
HK$'000
HEBESFE Net assets disposed of:
Be MRS EEEAR Cash and cash equivalents 26
EMEKERR RIZE Other receivables and deposits 491
FEUE 5 8RR Trade receivables 10
HEMmEMERERRETEE Other payables and accruals (515)
12
HERB AR Z IS Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 5 287
299
SENE Satisfied by:
— B AR IRIERE 2 AT E Fair value of equity investment in a
REBIER—LRIZEFIEE subsidiary retained as investment in a
wE jointly-controlled entity 296
Re Cash 3
299
NTARLEMBAR RS KA An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
CEEEEREFEIN equivalents in respect of the disposed subsidiaries is as
follows:
—g-=
2013
FHT
HK$’000
RENE Cash consideration 3
HERE MRS EBEEE Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (26)
RHEEMNBLARZRE R Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
REZEIEB RHFERE respect of the disposals of subsidiaries (23)
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36. MEBEELREBRMFE

FEFRERS

(i)

(ii)

HE_Z2—=F=ZA=+—
BIEFER AEBE B
224,000 L (=& — —4F :
1,607,000) 2 FE A -~ &
EREMEBKEREREE
BT

AEE B X 142,500,000 T
ﬁw%ﬁ:éwz 2 EWB
/NCII ﬁﬁ#ﬂifmﬁzﬁu

36. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Group has transferred HK$224,000 (2012:
HK$1,607,000) from prepayments, deposits and
other receivables to construction in progress.

The Group had paid HK$2,500,000 as capital
contribution for the establishment of a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary and it had been

Fj%ﬂﬁ&é H=E = classified as long term deposits in prior years.
F=H=+—H Jtﬁf‘ﬁ\] During the year ended 31 March 2013, long term
REUHK Y il 2 B - deposits of HK$1,375,000 was offset with other

Hﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁi\mwaooo,ﬁn/\
HMENEREEGTGER
HEAEBE 1,125,000
ﬁZEE@E@%%:ﬁEH%&

e MEMEWERR
l/\ BAR_ZTE—=F=H

payables and accruals upon the cancellation of
the establishment of the above mentioned entity
and the Group has transferred the remaining
HK$1,125,000 from long term deposits to
prepayments, deposits and other receivables as
it was repayable within twelve months as at 31

=+—Bz+ZEAREE March 2013.
37. IAREE 37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) HE_ZEZENF=ZA=+-— (a) During the year ended 31 March 2008, an
BIEFEEARN  —B R E independent service provider (the “Plaintiff”)
EE(IREANDEEBEAR issued a legal proceeding in Hong Kong against
mMAEBE —WEB AR (s a subsidiary of the Group (the “Defendant”)
/\J)hﬁuﬁ‘/\ M E AR and a claim against the Defendant for a sum

E—F AH627,571F T (4
4,895,000 0 ) 2 & & o
FBEEAEBEEAER—H
HEAE-_ZEZTNF+_-_A=

of US$627,571 (approximately HK$4,895,000).
The Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant was in
breach of a service agreement dated 3 December
2004 (the "Agreement”) and failed to make

Bzl il payments in accordance with the Agreement
rERZMEMNR([ZB (the “Claim”). In this connection, the Defendant
T]) ok WEATA also filed a claim against the Plaintiff and alleged

Hat 3

BERRSARORER X
EHEREARBRZME - K
AR T Mo B % B2 5% 1hh = FIT 7
ELDERBRBMERTZE

that the Plaintiff was in breach of the Agreement
in failing to design and develop the products
in substantial conformance to the functional
specification as defined in the Agreement.

B At - WEARERE A Accordingly, the Defendant made a counterclaim
%Eﬁ REBR ZRKREARE against the Plaintiff for liquidated damages in the
8 & F 18 F % 1E100,000 3 sum of US$100,000 and other damages to be
JC A&Z éﬂEZﬁiU’ME assessed together with interest and costs (the
EREE - ERMNEBEERE “Counterclaim”).

(HﬁEF'AJ) °
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37. RAREBE(E)

(&)

ERTHBELRENAEE
REERBENEE - HE
AZRKREZENR B FEZ B
RIEEESULE BEEA
EZHRRMRBEB R T
FeoNAFE  KBERIE
HHZERERRZBRREER
REWLEE —FHER - K
RAIEERABEAT M ER
BE(ZE——F &)

(a) (a)

RmERR - AR BHRERT
ZEMHABBEFBWAT

(b)

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(continued)

Based on the available evidence and subject to
discovery and expert evidence, the Defendant's
representing solicitor considered that there were
valid defences to the Claim and the Defendant
had a good chance of success in the Claim and
the Counterclaim. During the year, there was
no further progress noted in the Claim and
Counterclaim. Having considered the positive
legal opinion and no further progress in the Claim
and Counterclaim during the year, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision
is required to be made (2012: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, details of other
contingent liabilities in the financial statements
were as follows:

AEE
Group
—E-=%& =

N
Company
—EB—=F T
2013
THERT
HK$’000

2013
FH

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FLEMERTH  Guarantees given to banks
BEREmA T in connection with
SRITZHER - facilities granted to:
L)EEMNGT) Subsidiaries - - 117,647 149,000
A E Available-for-sale
"E investments - 7,755 - =
- 7,755 117,647 149,000

R-_E—=H=AF=+—
H  BRAQDAGLTRITHN
ERMERTZRITERSE
2 & /A 420,000,000 (=
£ — — 4 : 20,000,000) & i
mHASEERMG T A MH
HEKREZRITERRE(ZE
— =% :7,755,000) °

As at 31 March 2013, the banking facilities
granted to the subsidiaries subject to guarantees
given to the banks by the Company were utilised
to HK$20,000,000 (2012: HK$20,000,000),
and no (2012: HK$7,755,000) banking facilities
guaranteed by the Group to available-for-sale
investments were utilised.
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38. KEHERH
AEEREBELEHELHHERAES

TEFEBYEREBIES - WEZ
HEBEHHI—E=—_+F-

R-E—=F=A=+—0 K&
B M A BUH < K& E P RK
RLORNESARE  RAEEERD
SEMT

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.
Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to twenty years.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

rEH
Group
—FE—=F —==4F
2013 2012
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FNRN Within one year 8,287 8,739
REZFEEFRF In the second to fifth years,
(BEERWE) inclusive 10,938 15,223
BBEAF After five years 288 1,940
19,513 25,902
MREREEIKR - NA T EE A E K At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
KEFHELH - significant operating lease arrangements.
39. AiE 39. COMMITMENTS

Br E X382 (K EHE L HERFIS
G REBRBEHRMA THE
G

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 38 above, the Group had the following
capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

rEH
Group
—E-=fF

— =
2012
FHETT
HK$'000

2013
FERT
HK$’000

BRI AVBEREREHE - Contracted, but not provided for:
FELEMHEHEEZ Capital contributions payable in

FEfT B R investment in unlisted securities - 1,205
ME - BB MR E Property, plant and equipment 14,327 11,426

REERKR - AR B BRI EAA
B(ZT——F:8\)-

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
significant commitments (2012: Nil).
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40. BEALTXRS

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) BREULEMBmMEREMELD (a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
HMHRZN  RAFRA - in these financial statements, the Group had
AEEBETINERNBEAT the following material transactions with related
R : parties during the year:

REH
Group
—B-Z=F —E—fF
2013 2012
ih=s FET FHIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RS E & QA Royalty expense charged by
WER 2 5 FA#E X H an associate of the Group (i) 784 1,582
MR REE Purchases of products
ZE M from associates (ii) 3,604 2,849

MIaE Notes:

(i) FAEIHERREANSE B (i) The royalty expense was calculated based on the
NEIRRNENFFHENE FEF number of electronic handheld products sold by a
EmNEE IR SN r Mz B subsidiary of the Group during the year with the terms
ANTBFTEIS 2 (F B RE G T as stipulated in the royalty agreement between the
He associate and that subsidiary.

(i) MEERAREE 2ERIDIBERE (i) The purchases from associates were made according
BMENRLTHIERE Z AH to the published prices and conditions offered by the
B MG EmIELR A - associates to its major customers.

(b) AEEFEEIEABFRMN : (b) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group:

—E—= —F——

2013 2012

F#&xT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

CHRESEA Short term employee benefits 11,836 13,834

EA R IR BN Performance-related incentive

2 RE payments 75 =

RIRFT BB Pension scheme contributions 361 462
TREBEEAEZ Total compensation paid to key

RN 4B EE management personnel 12,272 14,296

ExMeE—SHBENY
R MIEES -

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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41. REFHEI2z2EMIE 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
ZHEAemITARNKERAZER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
BT : financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
—g-=f% ARHE
2013 Group
SREE Financial assets
-¢054 e
FE R SR SHEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
THT THT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRHERE Available-for-sale investments - 36,425 36,425
JlBRBEEZ Financial assets included in
TREE long term deposits 3,275 - 3,275
U E R Trade receivables 56,999 - 56,999
FIBRMNHE - e Financial assets included in
REMEKES 2 prepayments, deposits
SREE and other receivables 27,780 - 27,780
JE Wtk & A B BR 3K Amounts due from associates 3,328 - 3,328
B REHIE R Amounts due from jointly-controlled
R entities 195 - 195
RehBFLEEER Cash and cash equivalents 80,782 - 80,782
172,359 36,425 208,784
SRMEE Financial liabilities
BREBEHBATE
ZEEe s
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FHET
HK$000
B E SRR Trade payables 43,389
5l A E Ath FE ST BR 3K Financial liabilities included in
kEGFEEzZEmaE other payables and accruals 22,551
M ESRITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 20,000
85,940
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41. RERE2z2EMIAE(E) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
S 3 AEH
2012 Group
STREE Financial assets
BATE
TABRR
ZEREE g7 e
~BEEE FEUER X TREE
Financial
assets at fair
value through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss-held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
THIL TiExT TEx AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments = = 38,218 38,218
FlERERE 2 Financial assets included in
TREE long term deposits - 3,391 - 3,391
[EUE 5 8R4 Trade receivables = 59,640 = 59,640
FIBRNHE - ke Financial assets included in
RE A RUERR 2 prepayments, deposits
SREE and other receivables - 34,866 - 34,866
FELISZ ‘éﬁ%ﬁ B Amounts due from associates = 1,423 = 1,423
R %Ila'é@ Amount due from a jointly-controlled
EET/\ entity - 4,277 - 4,277
BRATELABRRZ Investments at fair value through
RE profit or loss 8,261 - - 8,261
RekREEEER Cash and cash equivalents - 138,990 = 138,990
8,261 242 587 38,218 289,066
ERBE Financial liabilities

R HK AT E

ZopBaE

Financial

liabilities at

amortised cost

TAT

HK$'000

B E Z R Trade payables 39,666
Y| AEMERNEEZ R  Financial liabilities included in

ErtREZS/EE other payables and accruals 23,260

Mt BERITREE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 20,000

82,926
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41. RERESZ2EMITAE(E) 41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
KA F]
Company
SREE Financial assets
ERREWERR
Loans and receivables
—E—=5 —E——F
2013 2012
THERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JiE U B /B 2 B BR 3K Due from subsidiaries 534,266 609,253
& MIBITES Cash and bank balances 103 203
534,369 609,456
¥ NN
Company
=L Financial liabilities

REBERSTTEZSRAE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
FHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000

JEASHFT B A BIBR X Due to subsidiaries 198,897 198,667
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=®F=H=+—H 31 March 2013

NEERAFESER 42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

UAFEINEZEREENRSRE The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities

B TEESAHEEREREAF except available-for-sale investments and investments

B ABRRZEBEEDARTEESY at fair value through profit or loss approximate to

B BEAREEEETEEREH their carrying amounts largely due to the short term

NEH - ARAFETETETE - maturities of these instruments. Available-for-sale

A & R B 3R B AN R T {A] B &S investments are stated at cost less impairment as their

BAMK - fair values cannot be reliably measured.

REBRAATERERBUEE R The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining

FELMTAMNRAFE: and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

E—E -ZRABREEXBBENER Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
MEHME(KREHAR)E (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
E R RFE assets or liabilities

F_E UAGHEHRMNMEESN A FE Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
B HZHERMHAEE techniques for which all inputs which have a
Zig ARYHHEEE significant effect on the recorded fair value are
ERAIRE /T I5 SR observable, either directly or indirectly

F-EB - UHERMEEHN A FE Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
B BZEERMHAEE techniques for which all inputs which have a
2 AREHIEERNTR significant effect on the recorded fair value
ENTSEE(TARERN are not based on observable market data
BAZE) (unobservable inputs)

RZE—=F=ZA=+—H ' &% As at 31 March 2013, the Group does not hold financial

BUEHERATFEFEZSRT instruments measured at fair value.

E_ o

RZE—Z—ZF=A=+—H K& As at 31 March 2012, the Group held the following

BisERAFTEFEZEBR T AN financial instruments measured at fair value:

T :

R-ZE——F=A=+—HBURF Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2012:

BFfEZEE :

HZH—E HEE HEE 5T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

TAT TAET THET THAT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BAFELA Investments at fair value
BERIZEE through profit or loss 8,261 = = 8,261
BHE_ZT——F#=A=+—HI#F During the year ended 31 March 2012, there were no
EA ; FENFE_E2HIER transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
FEFEER  NEATEI=EE and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3.

ASBEE=FE -
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—Z=—=f=F=+—0 31 March 2013
43. B EKREEBEZERBEER 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES
AEBFESHMTEARERE & The Group's principal financial instruments mainly
WE SRR R E A EIBRER Iﬁfﬁ comprise investments, trade and other receivables,
FEEFER  BE AR K —HRE cash and short term deposits, long term deposits,
HEEER  ENESIRI - H1i balances with associates and a jointly-controlled entity,
FENBER R ERITEE - trade payables, other payables and interest-bearing
bank borrowing.
$$lf£@1ﬂ?$6’]$ﬁﬂ =] The main risks arising from the Group's financial
fo BN E & AR K INE JE, instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
% o i% fa e MR =& It fE R currency risk. The board of directors reviews and
SRR - BT agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.
EER b Credit risk
AEBZEERB TERGHEIK The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
BSERM ° Zﬁilfﬂﬁﬁfiﬁﬁ its trade receivables. The Group has been largely
ROUEEERBOESRZ2EL o R dependent on a small number of customers for
TE—=F=ZA=+—HRAAE a substantial portion of its business. The top five
FLHERKE ZEREASREBBLILS% customers represent over 45% (2012: over 40%) of
—= —:¢ BiB40% ) ° fHiE the amount of trade receivables as at 31 March 2013.
EX P N2 ﬁ%jziﬁﬁﬁm L The failure of these customers to make the required
EapNESETRC **%i ERBERNKEEY payments could have a negative impact on the Group's
2. BB EERRRERE A& operating results. In order to minimise the credit risk,
IEEEE;@EE—@/\,% BEE management of the Group has delegated a team
EEERSE  EEZFHEREMEE responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
TR » DATE(R B EUER 3 8 i Ug 2] 380 approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
GBS o o - ANEE S FHEFH that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
FIEEREWE ZER 2 A KkEo S In addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable
B URBERRAAIWESEEEL amount of each individual trade to ensure that adequate
W7 EESE - gitkms » AEFH impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
EERARAEE 2 EERRBREEZE In this regard, the directors consider that the Group's
BRI A IRERIE o credit risk is properly managed and significantly
reduced.
AR AEEEFEERAA 2 EE2BE Y Since the Group trades only with recognised and
%EE?E?‘TEE N 4 B SR AR i creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
BHm - collateral.
NEBEMESHEE(BFERES L The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
IRESZEEBEE nHEEERE - JE which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
W—HEEH TR NEE DR R for-sale investments, amounts due from a jointly-
P BATEZABRRZEER controlled entity and associates, investments at fair
ETUTETR)ZEZERRBRE S value through profit or loss and certain derivative
HHRE MERZEZS ERESE instruments, arises from default of the counterparty,
REETAREZKRAEE - with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.
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43.
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43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank borrowing and banking facilities. The Group's
bank borrowing would mature in less than one year
as at 31 March 2013 based on the carrying value of
borrowing reflected in the financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Group

—E—=fF
2013

LR =Z@EAED
=@A R+=@A
3 to
less than
12 months
F#ExT
HK$'000

FEZ R

et

(0])]
demand
TET
HK$°000

Less than
3 months
F#ExT
HK$°000

Total
F#ERT
HK$’000

Bt B ERTT Interest-bearing bank
(N borrowing 20,000 - - 20,000
FEfTE SRR Trade payables 21,273 19,386 2,730 43,389
H A FE T BR TR Other payables 22,551 - - 22,551
63,824 19,386 2,730 85,940
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43. BHEREEEERBE(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

REBESRER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
KEE (&) Group (continued)

—E——4F
2012
RN =EAED
JEZE K RT={EA 5T

3 to

Less than less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
FHAT FAT FAT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt BERTT Interest-bearing bank
=94 borrowing 20,000 - - 20,000
FERTE 5 R Trade payables 13,087 25,798 781 39,666
H At T AR Other payables 23,260 - - 23,260
A EER A H Guarantees given to banks in
HERENEREE connection with facilities
M4 T ERITZIER granted to available-for-sale
investments 7,755 - - 7,755
64,102 25,798 781 90,681
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43. BMBEREEBFERBEK(E)

RBEEER(E)
A 7]

RIBEHR - LB FTHARELIRFIEA
ABEE . KRR BEZERH
BRI

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

The maturity profile of the Company's financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

—E—=fF
2013

EEXR HiE—F st

On demand Over 1 year Total

F#ExT THET F#ET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FETHT B A R BR X Due to subsidiaries - 198,897 198,897
A RERTHE AR Guarantees given to banks in

I A sE M4 TER1T connection with facilities
ZER granted to subsidiaries 20,000 - 20,000
20,000 198,897 218,897

—E——F
2012
JEE sk B —F st
On demand  Over 1 year Total
T FHIT FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEAT B B A BIBR K Due to subsidiaries - 198,667 198,667
HEBERTHBAR  Guarantees given to banks in
K1 BRI 48 TERTT connection with facilities
ZIER granted to subsidiaries 20,000 - 20,000
20,000 198,667 218,667
SN [ B Foreign currency risk

AEBPRRZFEERR - ZFR
BRELSEBMHHEEXBE(E
I NRE BRI - REEBE
) FE U E 5 BR AN B 2 5 BR FUA
SNEEFTHE ©

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Certain trade receivables and payables of
the Group are denominated in foreign currencies.
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43. BHEREEEERBE(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

SRR (48) Foreign currency risk (continued)

AT RBBETREEMEH GRS TE The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
MBERT  ARBLKAEERZES end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
IBA[pe e E) W EEAREAER change in the Renminbi and Japanese yen exchange
MABECBRE(BREEMEEE rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
FABBZAFEEIHHTE) - Group's loss before tax (due to changes in the fair value

of monetary assets and liabilities).

SE BADER #in,
Aotk (BR)z228 (ORD)#EE*
Change in Increase/
Change profit/(loss) (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*
ERslsd FHET FHET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=F 2013
EBTTHATE®ER  |If Hong Kong dollar
B21E ¢ weakens against:
AR Renminbi 5 344 -
= Japanese yen 8 3,009 -
EBTTHIATE®ER  |If Hong Kong dollar
VAREERE strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 (344) -
= Japanese yen 8 (3,009) -
— T4 2012
BTN AN B & If Hong Kong dollar
B2 (B - weakens against:
AR¥ Renminbi 5 1,110 -
= Japanese yen 8 2,614 -
E TN AN & B = If Hong Kong dollar
VAREERE strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 5 (1,110) =
H Japanese yen 8 (2,614) =
* TRIEZFTEE & Excluding accumulated losses
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HIRIG 2 MEPLL RN

43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31
March 2012.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which
is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the current ratio over one.
The current ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

K EE [E] Group
—E—=F —E—_F
2013 2012
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
mEEE Current assets 240,408 328,154
mEAE Current liabilities 96,223 112,406
BN =R Current ratio 2.50 2.92
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44,

45,

e &3

AEBHE-—_ZT——FMOA—HRBE
BFEHEBEMEODMES EAL
BHERRBEMN R - Fit - &
FEHEE B EHODMER BN 2
BFEEREEBIBENAE R
EBHBERLBEFEEN O
UREARFEZZS -

MBRR 2

KA HREN —_E—=F"A=-++
HEESS o &E MRETIED -

44.

45.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The Group had merged its electronic dictionary division
and ODM division as the strategic products segment
beginning from 1 April 2012. Accordingly, figures of
electronic dictionary division and ODM division have
been combined for operating segment information
purpose and comparative amounts of operating
segment information have been reclassified to conform
with the current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 27 June 2013.
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Financial Summary

AMEWFEARCEZTBERER 2EF  This summary does not form part of the audited financial
—ELA o statements.

E 3 RESULTS

BE-A=1+—-HLHFE
For the year ended 31 March
“ETNE —F-FF ZT—% Z¥--f ZB-=F

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
TET THAT THET TR TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WA Revenue 752,605 663,261 622,855 478,708 383,340
RAIEE Loss before tax (64,468) (21,990) (31,485) (76,872) (76,688)
1A Income tax (279) (12,942) (292) (46) 3
NEEEE Loss for the year (64,747) (34,932) (31,777) (76,918) (76,685)
FE(h (E518) /% :  (Loss)/profit attributable to:
AN FIRAE Equity holders of the (64,673) (34,256) (31,807) (73,182) (75,724)
FAA Company
P iR Non-controlling interests (74) (676) 30 (3,736) (961)
REEFEE Loss for the year (64,747) (34,932) (31,777) (76,918) (76,685)
EEHEE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=B=+-—-H
As at 31 March
—TENFE E-TF —T——F = —E-=F
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
FHBT FHBIT FET FET FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHEEB Total assets 687,000 670,086 610,111 523,959 431,960
aBERE Total liabilities (158,414) (175,489) (136,403) (112,408) (96,223)
528,586 494,597 473,708 411,553 335,737

ARRIEAEHE A Equity attributable to equity 524,458 491,142 469,967 407,403 332,392
FEfh iR holders of the Company
FEFE il Non-controlling interests 4,128 3,455 3,741 4,150 3,345

528,586 494,697 473,708 411,553 335,737
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Particulars of Major Properties

REBNR-_ZE—=%=H=+—H#A Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31
FEMEZFBOT : March 2013 are set out below:

BB <Pz £ 58

Name/location Type Lease term

HEYX

Leasehold properties:

1. BBNEERFEER I 4 Hf
EMIEH 28
F13-24TH Rk
Hh B PSR AF B AL
Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor Industrial Medium-term lease
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

2. PEHRERZEEETK I 4 Hf
REMRLHE
Y EER
FEHT ¥R
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense Industrial Medium-term lease
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China

FERETR

Construction in progress:

1. HEERE T HR A HR
BN TR I
FEIRER 9655
96 Ban He Road Industrial Medium-term lease

Guangzhou Science Park
Guangzhou City

Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China
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